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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Ventive Hospitality Private Limited (formerly known as ICC Realty (India) Private
Limited)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Ventive Hospitality Private Limited (formerly
known as ICC Realty (India) Private Limited) (“the Company™). which comprise the Balance sheet as at
March 31 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss. including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income,
the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013. as amended (“the Act™) in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India. of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, its profit including other
comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs), as
specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described
in the *Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
financial statements. .

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Board of Directors’ report, but does not include the financial statements and-:—-

our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements. our responsibility is to read the other information
and. in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

The Board of Directors™ report is not made available to us as at the date of this auditor's report. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act tﬂ:-—~
respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial p
financial performance including other comprehensive income. cash flows and changes in eqL‘
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including
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Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent: and the design. implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements. management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations. or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exiss. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs. we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

*  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate. to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However. future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures. and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding. among other matters. the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence. and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
I. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order™), issued by the Central

Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure 1™
a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

)

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act. we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books except

i.  That the back-up for books of account maintained in servers physically located in India
for two software used in the hotel business was not kept on a daily basis from April 01,
2023 to December 31, 2023 and in respect of another two software used in the hotel
business which are operated by third party service provides for which, in the absence
of evidence in the Service Organisation Controls report, we are unable to comment on
whether the backup of books of account and other books and papers in respect of such
software maintained in electronic mode has been maintained on a daily basis on servers
physically located in India; and

ii.  for the matters stated in the paragraph (i) (vi) below on reporting under Rule 11 (g):

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules. 2015, as
amended. specified under section 133 of the Act:

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2024 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31. 2024 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act:

(f) The modification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith
are as stated in the paragraph (b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) and paragraph (i)(vi)
below on reporting under Rule 11(g);

(g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these financial
statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls. refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure 27 to this report;

(h) The provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the Com

for the vear ended March 31. 2024: / %X
) D
e




SRBC&CO LLP

Chartered Accountants

(i) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

iii.

vi.

The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position:

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses:

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

a) The management has represented that. to the best of its knowledge and belief. other than as
disclosed in the note 43 to the financial statement, have been advanced or loaned or invested
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies). including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise. that the
Intermediary shall. whether. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee. security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have
been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(“Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries; and

c) Based on such audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe
that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement.

No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company.

Based on our examination which included test checks. the Company has used accounting
software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit
log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded
in the software except that audit trail feature is not enabled for certain changes made, if any.
using privileged/ administrative access rights. as described in note 42 to the financial
statements.

During the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being
tampered with. in respect of accounting software(s) where the audit trail has been enabled.

Further, the Company has used three accounting software in the hotel business which are
operated by third-party software service providers. In the absence of any observations on audit
trail feature in the respective Service Organisation Controls (SOC) reports. we are unable to
comment on whether audit trail feature of these software was enabled and operated throughout
the year for all relevant transactions recorded in these software or whether there were any
instances of the audit trail feature being tampered with. Also. the Company has used one
accounting software in its mall operations which is operated by a third-party software service
provider. for maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended March 31 , 2024 ,
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throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software, except that in the
absence of evidence in SOC-I Type 2 report, we are unable to comment whether audit trail
feature of the said software was enabled at the database level or whether there were any
instances of the audit trail feature being tampered with,

ForSRBC & CO LLP
Chartered Accountanfs
Firm Regi Lt%a on Number: 324982E/E300003

per Paul Alvares

Partner

Membership Number: 105754
UDIN: 24105754BKBZPB6914
Place of Signature: Pune

Date: August 05. 2024
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Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements” of our report of even date

Re: Ventive Hospitality Private Limited (formerly known as 1CC Realty (India) Private Limited) (“the
Company™)

[n terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the company and the books of account
and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we state
that:

(i) (a) (A)  The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars. including quantitative
details and situation of Property. Plant and Equipment and investment property.

(i) (@) (B)  The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(i) (b) The Property, Plant and Equipment and investment property have been physically verified by
the management during the year and no material discrepancies were identified on such
verification. In our opinion, the frequency of physical verification program adopted by the
company is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.

(i) (c) The title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is
the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) disclosed in note
4 and 5 to the financial statements are held in the name of the Company. These immovable
properties are pledged with the banks and their title deeds are not available with the Company.

(i) (d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of use
assets), investment property or intangible assets during the year ended March 3 1,2024,

(i) (e) There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami
property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made
thereunder.

(ii) (a) The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals

during the year. In our opinion the coverage and the procedure of such verification by the
management is appropriate. Discrepancies of 10% or more in aggregate for each class of
inventory were not noticed oi such physical verification.

(ii) (b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. five crores in
aggregate from banks or financial institutions during any point of time of the year on the basis
of security of current assets. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(ii)(b) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

[This page has been intentionally left blank]
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(iii) (a)

(iii) (b)

(iii) (c)

(ifi) (d) .

(iii) (e)

During the year the Company has provided loans to companies as follows:
(Amount in INR million)

Particulars Guarantees | Security Loan

Aggregate amount of loan granted/
provided during the year to the

- Subsidiaries - = o

- Joint Ventures e - 5

- Associates ~ - -

Others - - 950.00

Balance outstanding as at balance sheet
date in respect of

- Subsidiaries - = =

- Joint Ventures - " =

- Associates - = -

- Others - - 710.00

During the year, the terms and conditions of all loans and advances in the nature of loans
granted by the Company are not prejudicial to the Company's interest. Further, durin g the year,
there are no investments made, guarantees provided and security given by the Company.

In respect of loans granted to companies, the schedule of repayment of loan is not stipulated
and interest is repayable on demand. Hence, we are unable to make a specific comment on the
regularity of repayment of principal and payment of interest in respect of such loan.

There are no amounts of loans and advances in the nature of loans granted to companies, firms,
limited liability partnerships or any other parties which are overdue for more than ninety days.

There were no loans or advance in the nature of loan granted to companies which have fallen

due during the year, that have been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the
overdues of existing loans given to the same parties.

[This page has been intentionally left blank]
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(iii) () As disclosed in note 8 to the financial statements, the Company has granted loans or advances
in the nature of loans, without specifying any terms or period of repayment to companies. Of
these following are the details of the aggregate amount of loans or advances in the nature of
loans granted to promoters or related parties as defined in clause (76) of section 2 of the
Companies Act. 2013:

(Amount in INR million)

] All parties Promoters Related parties |
Aggregate amount of loans/ 950.00 Nil 950.00
advances in nature of loans
- Repayable on demand
Percentage of loans/ advances in 100% Nil 100% |
nature of loans to the total loans |

(iv) Loans, investments, guarantees and security in respect of which provisions of sections 185 and
186 of the Companies Act. 2013 are, to the extent applicable, have been complied with by the
Company.

(v) The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts

which are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Companies
Act and the rules made thereunder. to the extent applicable. Accordingly. the requirement to
report on clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(vi) We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the
rules made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under section
148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, related to generation of electricity, and are of the opinion
that prima facie, the specified accounts and records have been made and maintained. We have
not. however, made a detailed examination of the same.

(vii) (a) Undisputed statutory dues including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state
insurance, professional tax, income-tax, duty of customs, Maharashtra value added tax, and
other statutory dues have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities
though there has been a slight delay in a few cases.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on audit procedures
performed by us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of these statutory dues were
outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they became
payable.

[This page has been intentionally left blank]
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(vii) (b) The dues of goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax,

sales-tax. service tax, duty of custom, duty of excise, value added tax. cess, and other statutory

dues which have not been deposited on account of any dispute, are as follows:

Name of the
statute

Nature of
the dues

Amoun
t (INR
million

)

Period to
which the
amount
relates

Forum where
the dispute is
pending

Remarks. if any

The Central
Goods and
Service Tax
Act. 2017

Goods and
Service
Tax

59.43

2017-18

Appellate
Authority,
Maharashtra

Amount  paid
under protest is
INR 2.86
million

Income Tax
Act, 1961

Income
Tax

5.13

ALY 2020-
21

Commissioner
of Income Tax

Amount  paid
under protest is

(CIT) Appeal Nil.

The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the
books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during
the year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

(viii)

The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment
of interest thereon to any lender during the year.

(ix) (a)

The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

(ix) (b)

Term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

(ix) (c)
(ix) (d)

On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, no funds raised on
short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(ix) ()

The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on Clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(ix) (D

The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer / further
public offer (including debt instruments) hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(a) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(x) (a)

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares /fully or
partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year under audit and hence. the
requirement fo report on clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(x) (b)

No fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the
year.

(xi) (a)

During the year. no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act. 2013
has been filed by us in Form ADT - 4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

(xi} (b)
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(xi) (c)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv) (a)

(xiv) (b)

(xv)

(xvi) (a)

(xvi) (b)

(xvi) (c)

(xvi) (d)

(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

As represented to us by the management. there are no whistle blower complaints received by
the Company during the year.

The Company is not a nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
Therefore. the requirement to report on clause 3(xii)(a). 3(xii)(b) and 3(xii)(c) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 188 of the Companies Act,
2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements. as required by the applicable accounting standards.

The provisions of section 177 are not applicable to the Company and accordingly the
requirement to report under clause 3(xiii) of the Order insofar as it relates to section 177 of the
Act is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its
business.

The internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of the audit report, for the period
under audit have been considered by us.

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with its directors and hence requirement to report on clause 3(xv) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

The provisions of section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) are not
applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(a) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not engaged in any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities.
Accordingly. the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made by
Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

The Group has one Unregistered Core Investment Company as part of the Group.

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current year and in the immediately preceding
financial year respectively.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly
requirement to report on Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 40 to the financial statements. ageing and
expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities. other
information accompanying the financial statements. our knowledge of the Board of Directors
and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions. nothing has come (o our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its
liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one
year from the balance sheet date. We. however. state that this is not an assurance as to the
future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the f
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(xx) (a)

(xx) (b)

the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get
discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

In respect of other than ongoing projects. there are no unspent amounts that are required to be
transferred to a fund specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act (the Act), in compliance
with second proviso to sub section 5 of section 135 of the Act. This mater has been disclosed
in note 28.02 to the financial statements.

There are no unspent amounts in respect of ongoing projects, that are required to be transferred
to a special account in compliance of provision of sub section (6) of section 135 of Companies
Act. This matter has been disclosed in note 28.02 to the financial statements.

ForSRBC & CO LLP
Chartered Accountants

I Frm Reg*ﬂ\"-

per Paul Alvares

Partner

Membership Number: 105754
UDIN: 24105754BKBZPB6914

ton Number: 324982E/E300003

Place of Signature: Pune
Date: August 035, 2024
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Aunnexure 2 To the Independent Auditor’s Report of Even Date on the Financial Statements of
Ventive Hospitality Private Limited (formerly known as ICC Realty (India) Private Limited)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Ventive Hospitality Private
Limited (formerly known as ICC Realty (India) Private Limited) (“the Company™) as of March 31, 2024 in
conjunction with our audit of the {inancial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities
include the design. implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business. including adherence to
the Company’s policies. the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on Auditing
as specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls. both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting with reference to these
financial statements,

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that. in reasonable detail. accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounti

principles. and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accor
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authorisations of management and directors of the company: and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use. or disposition of the company's assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with Reference to these
Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to
these financial statements. including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls. material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected, Also. prajections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial
Statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting
with reference to these financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has. in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting with reference to these financial statements and such internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these financial statements were operating effectively as at
March 31, 2023, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

ForSRBC & COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Reg'\st tion Number: 324982E/E300003
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per Paul Alvares

Partner
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Ventive Hospitality Private Limited

(Formerly known as ICC Realty (India) Private Limited)

CIN: U45201PN2002PTC143638

Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024

(All amounts are in Indian Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

MNotes As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 44 1,602,83 1,723.57
Capital work-in-progress 4B 93.89 B6.61
liivestment properties A 3,251.36 3,407.66
Investment property under development 5B 162.39 10.64
Right-of-use assets 4aA 539.86 582.47
Intangible assets & 1.05 0.16
Financial assets
Other financial assets g 85.38 78.50
Income tax assets (net) 10 153.60 154.95
Other non-current assets 11 176.69 137.89
6,067.05 6,182.45
Current assets
Inventories 12 45.74 39.62
Financial assets
Investments 7 1,576.20 484.72
Trade receivables 13 173.13 239.57
Cash and cash equivalents 144 324.25 22539
Other bank balances 148 384.97 367.80
Loans 8 710.00 -
Other financial assets 9 91.84 123.79
Other current assets 11 146.51 129.59
3,452.64 1,610.48
TOTAL 9,519.69 7,792.93
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 15 104.44 104.44
Other equity 16 3,240,10 1,573.28
3,344.54 1,677.72
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 17 3,993.96 4,121,12
Lease liability 18 558.12 573.88
Other financial liabilities 19 393.05 375.69
Other liabilities 21 65.97 63.63
Provisions 22 20.13 17.60
5,031.23 5,151.92
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 17 132,12 130,55
Lease liability 18 15.75 12.61
Trade payables
- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 20 9.57 18.73
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 20 266.79 21691
Other financial liabilities 19 504.06 439.21
Other current liahilities 21 177.33 138.89
Provisions 22 6.79 6.39
Current tax liability (net) 23 31.51 -
1,143.92 963.29
Total liabilities 6,175.15 6,115.21
TOTAL 9,519,69 7,792.93

The accompanying notes form an integral p
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Ventive Hospitality Private Limited

(Formerly known as ICC Realty (India) Private Limited)

CIN: U45201PN2002PTC143638

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2024
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

Notes For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Income
Revenue from operations to24 4,779.80 4,308.13
Otherincome 25 167.28 109.41
Total income (1) 4,947.08 4,417,594
Expenses
Cost of raw material and components consumead 26 322.50 330.18
Cost of construction material sold 26 L.77 1.42
Employee benefits expense 27 374.46 297.93
Other expenses 28 1,242.76 1,287.09
Total expenses (1) 1,941.49 1,916.62
Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA) (1) - {11) 3,005.59 2,500.92
Finance costs 30 472.22 415,87
Depreciation and amortisation expense 29 481.49 493.16
Total expenses (I1) 953,71 909.03
Profit before tax 2,051.88 1,591.89
Tax expenses:
Current tax 32 386.91 279.15
Tax in respect of earlier years 1.80 0.01
Deferred tax - -
Total tax expenses 388.71 279.16
Profit for the year 1,663.17 1,312.73
Other comprehensive income
Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:
Re-measurement (losses)/gains on defined benefit plans 3.65 (0.72)
Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods (net of 3.65 (0.72)
tax)
Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 1,666.82 1,312.02
Earnings per equity share of INR 1 each (March 31, 2023: INR 1 each)
EPS basic and diluted (in INR) 31 15.92 12.36
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
As per our report of even date
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Ventive Hospitality Private Limited
(Formerly known as ICC Realty (India) Private Limited)
CIN: U45201PN2002PTC143638

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2024
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

A. Equity share capital

Amount in Million In numbers
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid- As at March 31, 2024 | As at March 31, 2023 | As at March 31, 2024 | As at March 31,2023
uptt
At the beginning of the year 104.44 107.14 1,04,43,957 1,07,14,000
Changes in equity share capital due to prior period errors* - : - i
Restated balance at the beginning of the current reporting 104.44 107.14 1,04,43,957 1,07,14,000
year
Buyback of shares (refer note 15} - {2.70) - (2,70,043)
At the end of the year 104.44 104.44 1,04,43,957 1,04,43,957
# Refer note 15.
* There are no changes in equity share capital due to prior period errors.
B. Other equity
Reserves and surplus Total
Capital redemption | Securities premium Retained earnings
reserve
Balance as at April 01, 2022 36.30 1,510.27 497.16 2,043.73
Profit for the year - . 1,312.73 1,312.73
Other comprehensive income - - (0.72) (0.72)
Total comprehensive income for the year ended March - - 1,312.02 1,312.02
31,2023
Transferred to capital redemption reserve 2.70 (2.70) - -
Less: Utilised towards buy back of shares (refer note 16) - (677.80) - (677.80)
Less: Utilised for interim dividend - - {867.01) (967.01)
Less: Tax on buyback of shares - - (137.65) (137.65)
Balance as at March 31, 2023 39.00 829.77 704.51 1,573.28
Profit for the year - - 1,663.17 1,663.17
Other comprehensive income - - 3.65 3.65
Total comprehensive income for the year ended March - - 1,666.82 1,666.82
31, 2024
Balance as at March 31, 2024 39.00 829.77 2,371.33 3,240.10

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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Ventive Hospitality Private Limited

(Formerly known as ICC Realty {India) Private Limited)
CIN: U45201PN2002PTC143638

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2024

(Ali amounts are in Indian Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

Notes As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

A. Cash flows from operating activities

Profit before tax 2,051.88 1,591.89
Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation 29 481.49 493.16
Liability no lenger required written back 25 [5.25) (1.21)
Profit on sale/discarded fixed assets 25 - (0.59)
Profit an sale of current investment 25 (15.29) (8.96)
Fair value gain on mutual funds measured at fair value through profit or loss 25 (50.45) (4.44)
Provision for doubtful receivables and advances 28 7.98 4.03
Bad debts written off 28 3.57 0.00
Advances written off 28 - 0.54
Finance costs 30 472.22 A415.87
Exchange Loss (unrealised) 28 4.08 6.13
Interest income 25 (75.60) (43.04)
Operating profit before working capital changes 2,874.63 2,453.38
Movements in working capital:

Increase in other non current assets 11 (47.74) (32.69)
Increase in inventories 12 (6.12) (11.28)
(Increase)/decrease In trade receivables 13 54.88 (44.60)
Increase In other current financial assets g {0.39) (0.97)
Increase in other non current financial assets 9 (6.88) (1.40)
(Increase)/decrease in other current assets 11 (16.93) 14.41
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables 20 36.65 (102.57)
Increase in other non-current financial liabilities 19 17.36 109.33
Increase in other nan-current liabilities 21 2.34 9.59
Increase/(decrease) in other current financial liabilities 19 53.63 (28.89)
Increase/(decrease) in other current liabilities 21 38.43 (20.77}
Increase in provisions ' 22 6.58 4.41
Cash generated from operations 3,006.44 2,347.96
Direct taxes paid (net of refunds) (355.85) (195.74)
Net cash flow generated from operating activities (A) 2,650.59 2,152.22
B. Cash flows from investing activities

Payments towards purchase of property, plant and equipment and capital wark in progress (119.56) (158.60)
Purchase towards investment property & investment property under construction (201.42) (54.28)
Sale of property, plant and equipment - 2.70
Investment in units of mutual funds (2,270.38) (2,082.00)
Proceeds from sale of mutual funds 1,229.35 1,710.70
Proceeds received from maturity of fixed deposit 60.65 641.40
Interest recelved 30.13 48.09
Proceeds from repayment of inter-corporate deposits 240.00 690.00
Loans given in the form of inter-corporate deposits (950.00) {690.00)
Net cash flow generated from/{used in) investing activities (B) (1,981.23) 108.00
C. Cash flows from financing activities

Buy back of equity share capital - (680.50)
Proceeds from long-term borrowings - 4,300.00
Repayment of long-term borrowings {129.00) (4,061.40)
Tax on buy back of shares - (137.65)
Dividend paid - {967.01)
Interest paid (385.91) (592.32)
Proceeds from inter-corporate deposits # 970.00
Repayment of inter-corporate deposits - (970,00}
Payment of principal portion of lease liability 18 (12.61) (11.75)
Payment of interest portion of lease liability 18 (42.98) (43.85)
Net cash flow used in financing activities (C) (570.50) (2,194.47)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A + B +C) 98.86 65.74
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 225.39 159.65
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 324.25 225.38




Ventive Hospitality Private Limited

(Formerly known as ICC Realty (India) Private Limited)

CiN: U45201PN2002PTC143638

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2024

(All amounts are in Indian Rupees millions, unless atherwise stated)

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

Cash and cash equivalents include

Balances with banks

Cash on hand

Total cash and cash equivalents [refer note 144)

323.42 224,80
0.83 0.59
324.25 225.39

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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Ventive Hospitality Private Limited

(Formerly known as ICC Realty (India) Private Limited)
CIN: U45201PN2002PTC143638

Notes to the Financial Statements

Material Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory Notes to the Financial Statements

1

2

Corporate information

Ventive Hospitality Private Limited (Formerly known as “1CC Realty (India) Private Limited”) (“the Company”) is a private limited
company domiciled in India and was incorporated on February 12, 2002 under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 engaged
in the business of leasing of commercial spaces, operation of a retail mall, operation of a commercial hotel and operation of
windmills. Its registered and principal office of business is located at Tech Park One, Tower 'E', Next to Don Bosco School, Off
Airport Road, Yerwada, Pune, MH-411006.

The financial statements were authorized for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors on August 05, 2024

Basis for preparation:

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified
under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 {as amended from time to time) and presentation requirements
of Division Il of Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013 {Ind AS compliant Schedule I1).

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain financial instruments which have been
measured at fair value or revalued amount at the end of each reporting period.

The financial statements are presented in INR and all values are rounded to the nearest million (INR 000,000), except when
otherwise indicated.

21 Summary of material accounting policies

(a) Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification.

An asset is treated as current when it is:
®  Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
e Held primarily for the purpose of trading
°  Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or
e Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is treated as current liability when either:
e Itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle
e Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading
e |tis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
e There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months afterthe reporting period

The terms of the liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments
do not affect its classification.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents.
The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle,




Ventive Hospitality Private Limited

(Formerly known as ICC Realty (India) Private Limited)
CIN: U45201PN2002PTC143638

Notes to the Financial Statements

(b) Foreign currencies
Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at the functional currency spot rates at the date the
transaction first qualifies for recognition.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates of exchange
at the reporting date. Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-maonetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at
the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items
measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e.,
translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in OCl or profit or loss are also recognised in OCl or
profit or loss, respectively).

In determining the spot exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or income (or part of it) on the
derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to advance consideration, the date of the transaction is
the date on which the Company initially recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the advance
consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the Company determines the transaction date for each
payment or receipt of advance consideration.

(c) Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, investments in mutual funds at fair value at each balance sheet date. Fair-
value related disclosures for financial instruments and non-financial assets that are measured at fair value or where fair values are
disclosed, are disclosed in note 38.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the
asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

e inthe principal market for the asset or liability. Or

® inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset
or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate econamic benefits
by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest

and best use.
The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to

measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair
value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:
o Llevel 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
e level2 —Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly
or indirectly observable
® Llevel 3 — Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

The Company’s management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value measurement, such unquoted
financial assets measured at fair value and for non-recurring measurement, such as non-current assets held for sale,

- External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets andfiabilities such as investment property. Involvement of external
valuers is decided upon annually by the management. Selection criteria include market knowledge, reputation, independence and
whether professional standards are maintained.




Ventive Hospitality Private Limited

(Formerly known as |CC Realty (India) Private Limited)
CIN: U45201PN2002PTC143638

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature,
characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

This note summarizes accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the relevant notes
- Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

- Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy

- Investment properties

- Financial instruments (including those carried at amortised cost)

(d) Revenue from operations
Rental income from investment property

Rental income from property leased under operating lease is recognized in the income statement on a straight-line basis over the
term of the lease. The lease term is the non-cancellable period together with any further term for which the tenant has the option
to continue the lease, where, at the inception of the lease, the Company is reasonably certain that the tenant will exercise that
option. The Company collects Goods and service tax on behalf of the government and therefore, itis not an economic benefit flowing
to the Company. Hence, it is excluded from revenue. Contingent rents if any are recognized as revenue In the period in which they
are earned,

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from operations is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to the customer at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The Company has
generally concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements, because it typically controls the goods or services before
transferring them to the customer.

(i) Hotel Operations

Rooms, Food, Beverage and other allied hotel services including banguet services:

Revenue is recognized at the transaction price that is allocated to the performance obligation. Revenue includes room
revenue, food and beverage sale and banquet services which is recognized once the rooms are occupied, food and
beverages are sald and banquet services have been provided as per the contract with the customer. Room revenue is
recognized over time while revenue from sale of food and beverages is recognized at a point in time, In relation to other
allied hotel services, the revenue has been recognized by reference to the time of service rendered.

(i) Commercial leasing and mall operations

Maintenance and parking charges:

Maintenance and parking charges arising from operating leases are recognized over time as and when the services are
rendered. The Company collects goods and service tax on behalf of the government and, therefore, these are not
economic benefits flowing to the Company. Hence, they are excluded from revenue.

Sale of construction material, including fitout sale:

Revenue from sale of construction materials is recognized at a point in time when control of the goods have been
transferred to the customer. The Company collects goods and service tax on behalf of the government and, therefore,
these are not econemic benefits flowing to the Company. Hence, they are excluded from revenue.

Variable Consideration:

If the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount (like volume rebates/incentives, cash discounts etc.), the
Company estimates the amount of consideration to which it will be entitled in exchange for rendering the services to the
customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a
significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognized will not occur when the associated
uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved. The estimate of variable consideration for expected
future volume rebates/incentives, cash discounts etc. are made on the most likely amount method. Revenue is disclosed
net of such amounts.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Contract balances
Contract Asset

A contract asset Is initially recognised for revenue earned from rooms, food, beverage and other allied hotel services
Including banquet services because the receipt of consideration is conditional on successful completion of the contract.
Upon completion of the performance obligation, the amount recognised as contract assets is reclassified to trade
receivables.

Contract assets are subject to impairment assessment. Refer to accounting policies on impairment of financial assets in
section p) Financial instruments — initial recognition and subsequent measurement,

Trade receivables

A receivable represents the Company's right to an amount of consideration that is uncanditional (i.e., only the passage
of time is required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to section (p} Financial instruments — measured
at amortised cost.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to render services to a customer for which the Company has received consideration
(or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Company renders
services to the customer, a contract liability is recognized when the payment is made. Contract liabilities are recognized
as revenue when the Campany performs under the contract.

(iii) Windmill Operations
Revenue from windmill operations is recognized at a point in time when the electricity generated has been transferred
to the customer.

(iv) Other operating revenue
Other operating revenue arising from operating lease is recognized as and when the services are rendered and are shown

net of expenses e.g. water charges.
{e) Taxes
Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities; on the basis of the taxable profits computed for the current accounting period in accordance with Income Tax Act,
1961. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OC
or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and considers whether it is probable that a taxation authority will accept
an uncertain tax treatment, The Company shall reflect the effect of uncertainty for each uncertain tax treatment by using either
most likely method or expected value method, depending on which method predicts better resolution of the treatment.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

s Whenthe deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is
not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss

e Inrespect of taxable temporary differences assediated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and intarests in joint
ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(f)

(g

—

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses, Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax |osses can be utilised,
except:

@ When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nortaxable profit or loss and does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences,

e Inrespect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint
ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilized

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised, Unrecognised
deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that
future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised
or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date,

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit orloss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive
income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCl or directly in
equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxation authority.

Property, plant and equipment and capital work in progress

The Company has opted to disclose the previous GAAP (Indian GAAP) carrying value of property, plant and equipment as the
deemed cost under Ind AS as at April 01, 2017.

Capital work in progress is stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment loss, if any. Property, plant and equipment, are stated
at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The cost comprises the purchase price,
borrowing costs if recognition criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the
intended use.

When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them
separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the
carrying amount of the property, plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair
and maintenance costs are recognised in the statement of profit or loss as incurred. CWIP comprises of cost of property plant
and equipment that are not yet ready for intended use as at balance sheet date.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is de-recognised upon disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the
statement of profit and loss when the asset is de-recognised.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial
year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Investment property

The Company has opted to disclose the previous GAAP (Indian GAAP) carrying value of investment property as the deemed cost
under Ind AS as at April 01, 2017.

Investment properties are measured ini;ially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recagnition, investment
properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss, if any. B

The cost includes purchase cost of land, the cost of replacing parts and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if
the recognition criteria are met. When significant parts of the investment property are required to be replaced at intervals, the
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Company depreciates them separately based an their specific useful lives. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised
in profit or loss as incurred.

Though the Company measures investment property using cost based measurement, the fair value of investmeant property is
disclosed in the notes, Fair values are determined based on an annual evaluation performed by an accredited external
independent valuer.

Investment properties are de-recognised either when they have been disposed of or when they are permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefit is expected from their disposal. The difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset is recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the period of de-recognition.

Transfers are made to (or from) investment properties only when there is a change in use. Transfers between investment
property, owner-occupied property and inventories do not change the carrying amount of the property transferred and they do
not change the cost of that property for measurement or disclosure purposes.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Fol lowing initial recognition, intangible assets
are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Intangible assets with finite useful lives are amortised over their useful economic lives and assessed for impairment whenever
there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an
intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. The amortisation expense on
intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the expense category consistent with the
function of the intangible assets unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset.

An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal (i.e., at the date the recipient obtains control) or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement
of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Depreciation and amortization

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment and investment property and amortization on intangible assets is calculated on
a Written Down Value (“WDV") basis using the rates arrived at based on the useful lives estimated by the management. The
identified components are depreciated separately over their useful lives; the remaining components are depreciated over the
life of the principal asset, The Company has used the following useful lives to provide depreciation on its property, plant and
equipment and investment property.

The Company, based on technical assessment made by technical expert and management estimate, depreciates some assets
over estimated useful lives which are different from the useful life prescribed in Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013 (refer
table below). The depreciation expense on property, plant and equipment and investment property is recognised in the
statement of profit and loss. The management believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair
approximation of the period over which the assets are likely to be used.

Useful Life Estimated by the Management (years)
Useful lives as per

1 Schedule Il (years)

Assets Cm:nmemal Hotel Mall
office space

Building 58 30 58 60
Building 30 i 30 30
facade
Raot, 20 20 15 15
Equipment
Electice] 20 20 10 10
Installations # . ‘
Furniture
and Fixtures = e 10
Computers b 6 6
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Useful Life Estimated by the Management (years)
Useful lives as per

: Schedule Il (years)

Assefs Commiercial Hotel Mall
office space

Offics 20 20 5 5
Equipment
Windmills 18 - - 22
Vehicles 10 10 - 10

The Company has used the following useful lives to provide amortization on its intangible assets. The amortisation expense on
intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the expense category consistent with the
function of the intangible assets

Useful Life Estimated by the Management (years)

Assots Commercial office Hotel Mall
space

Computer Software 3-10 3-10 3

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial
period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the respective asset. All other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period they occur.

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains, a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at the
inception date. The arrangement is assessed for whether fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific
asset or assets or the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an
arrangement.

Company as a lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the
right to use the underlying assets.

Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is
available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease
liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any
lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and
the estimated useful lives of the assets, as follows: '

» Office premises / Office Building 15 years
If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a

purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.
The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies in Impairment of non-financial assets.
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Lease Liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be
paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably
certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the
Company exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised
as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the
payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement date,
the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In
addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change
in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such
lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of Office building (i.e., those |eases
that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and da not contain a purchase option). it also applies
the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of office equipment that are considered to be low value. Lease
payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. I any indication
exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An
asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit's (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its
value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU

exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair
value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account, If no such transactions can be identified, an
appropriate valuation model is used.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations which are prepared separately
for each of the Company’s cash-generating units to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast
calculations are generally covering a period of five years. For longer periods, a long term growth rate is calculated and applied
to project future cash flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond periods covered by the most recent
budgets/forecasts, the Company extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget using a steady or declining growth rate for
subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In any case, this growth rate does not exceed the long-term
average growth rate for the industries in which the Company operates, or for the market in which the asset is used.

Impairment losses of continuing operations are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Inventories

Inventory of food, beverages and other supplies are valued at lower of cost and estimated net realizable value. Cost is
determined on a weighted average basis. Costs include cost of purchase including duties and taxes (other than refundable),

inward freight, and other expenditure directly attributable to the purchase.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of resources embadying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed,
for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the
reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any
reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time
is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingent liabilities

Contingent liability is:
(a) apossible obligation arising from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity or

(b) a present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognized because;
- it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation or
- the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses the same as per the requirements of Ind AS 37.

Financial instruments

Afinancial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument
of another entity.

Financial assets
Classification

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other
comprehensive income (‘FVTOCI') or fair value through profit or loss (‘FVTPL’).

Initial recognition and measurement

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics
and the Company’s business model for managing them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or for which the Company has applied the practical expedient, the Company initially measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Company has applied the practical expedient
are measured at the transaction price determined under Ind AS 115. Refer to the accounting policies in section {d) Revenue from
contracts with customers.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through QC, it needs to give rise to
cash flows that are ‘solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)’ on the principal amount outstanding. This assessment is
referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument level. Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPP| are classified
and measured at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business modal.

The Company’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate
cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the
financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held within a business model with the
objective to hald financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows while financial assets classified and measured at fair
value through OCI are held within a business model with the objective of both holding to collect contractual cash flows and
selling.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention
in the marketplace (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase
or sell the asset.
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Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in three categories:
e Atamortised cost
o Atfair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
e Atfairvalue through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets classified as measured at amortised cost

A financial asset shall be measured at amortised cost if both of the following conditions are met:
= the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows and
s the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
(‘EIR") method, less impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and
fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance expense/ (income) in the profit and
loss statement. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. This category generally
applies to trade receivables, security and other deposits receivable by the company.

Financial assets classified as measured at FYTOCI
There are no financial assets which are measured at FVTOCI.
Financial assets classified as measured at FVTPL

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the balance sheet at fair value with net changes in fair value
recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Such instruments are measured at fair value at initial recognition as well as at
each reporting date. The fair value changes are recognised in the statement of profit and loss eg mutual fund. Further, the
Company may make an irrevocable election to designate a financial asset as FVTPL, at initial recognition, to reduce or eliminate
a measurement or recognition inconsistency.

De-recognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily de-
recognised (i.e. removed from the Company’s balance sheet) when
o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or
e the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a)
the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

Impairment of financial assets
The Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following
financial assets and credit risk exposure:

e  Trade receivables

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises
impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether there has
been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECLis
used to provide for impairment loss.

ECL impairment loss allowanice (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/ expense in the statement of
profit and loss except for impairmentloss / (gain) on financial assets measured at FVTOCI, which shall be recognized in the OCI.
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Financial liabilities
Classification

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, and subsequently measured at amortised cost or fair value through profit
or loss ('FVTPL'),

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value net off in the case of financial liabilities not classified as fair value through
profit or loss {'FVTPL'), transaction costs that are attributable to the issue of the financial liability. Financial liabilities are
recognised in the Balance Sheet when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

This is the most relevant category to the Company. The Company generally classifies interest bearing borrowings as financial
liabilities at amortised cost. After initial recognition, these instruments are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated
as such upon Initial recognition. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company that are
not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109, Separated embedded derivatives are
also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Finandial liabilities designated as such upon initial recognition at the initial date of recognition if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are
satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risks are recognized in
OCl. These gains/ loss are nat subsequently transferred to the statement of profit and loss. However, the Company may transfer
the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit
and loss.

The Company has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit and loss.

De-recognition

A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing
financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or madification is treated as the de-recognition of the original liability and the
recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.
Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash on hand, balances with banks and short-term depaosits with an
original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Cash equivalents are short term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined
above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company's cash manageﬂnfggg_t._‘
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Provision for employment benefits
Defined contribution plans

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has no obligation, other than
the contributions payable to the provident fund. The Company recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme
as an expenditure in the statement of profit and loss, when an employee renders the related service.

Defined benefit plans

Post-employment benefit in the form of gratuity fund scheme is a defined benefit plan. The present value of obligation under
the scheme is determined based on actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method (‘PUCM’), The scheme is non-
funded.

Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net
interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or
credit to retained earnings through OC! in the period in which they occur, Re-measurements are not reclassified to the
statement of profit and loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in the statement of profit and loss on the earlier of:

o The date of the plan amendment or curtailment and
e The date on which the Company recognises related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Company recognises
the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation under ‘employee benefit expenses’ in the statement of profit and
loss:

= Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine
settlements
e Net interest expense or income

Refer Note 34 for additional disclosures relating to Company’s defined benefit plan.

Provision for compensated absences

Provision for short term compensated absences is recognised for accumulated leaves that are expected to be utilized within a
period of twelve months from the balance sheet date. Long term compensated absences are provided for on the basis of an
actuarial valuation, using projected unit credit method, as at each reporting date. The Company recognises the entire changes
in provision for compensated absences, including re-measurements in the statement of profit and loss for the year.

Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders by
the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted eamings per share, the net profit orloss for the period attributable to equity shareholders
and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential
equity shares.

Segment reporting

An operating segment is a component of a company whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the Company's chief
operating decision maker (CODM) to make decisions about resource allocation and assess its performance and for which
discrete financial information is available. The Company has identified the Board of Directors of the Company as its CODM.
Other income

interest Income;

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference ta the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate (‘EIR')
applicable. For all financial instruments measured at amortized cost, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate
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instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset. Interest income is included
in other income in the statement of profit and loss.

(v) Measurement of EBITDA

The Company has elected to present earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortization (EBITDA) as a separate line
item on the face of statement of profit and loss. The Company measures EBITDA on the basis of profit/ {loss) from continuing
operations. In its measurement, the Company does not include depreciation and amortization expense, finance costs and tax
expense.

Note 3A : Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Financial Statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material
adjustment to the carrying amount of asset or liability affected in future periods.

Judgements

In the process of applying the accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, which have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Operating lease commitments — Company as lessor

The Company has entered into commercial property leases on its investment property portfalio. The Company has determined,
based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements, such as the lease term not constituting a major part of
the economic life of the commercial property and the fair value of the asset, that it retains all the significant risks and rewards
of ownership of these properties and accounts for the lease contracts as operating leases.

Estimates and assumptions

The Company based its assumptions and estimates, concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and
assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the
Company’s control. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur,

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication
exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An
asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its
value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely incremental costs and an allocation of costs directly related to contract activities.

Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial
valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future.
These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities
involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these
assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated in
India, the management considers the interest rates of government bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of the
post-employment benefit obligation. The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables. Those mortality tables
tend to change only at interval in response ta demographic changes. Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based on
expected future inflation rates.
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Note 3B:

Others

Certain tenants have not paid service tax charged by the Company on lease rents during the year ended March 31, 2010 and
March 31, 2011 and disputed levy of service tax through ‘Retallers Association’. In said case, Hon'ble Supreme Court has vide
order dated October 14, 2011, directed the service receivers to deposit 50% of tax liability in three installments and granted stay
on balance dues and the matter is sub judice.

Based on legal advice, the Company is no longer liable to pay service tax in present case as the service receivers were directed
by Hon'ble Supreme Court to pay the service tax and matter is sub judice.

Accordingly, the Company will adjust service tax liability remaining outstanding as at March 31, 2023 of Rs. 72.22 lakhs (March
31, 2022 of Rs.72.22 lakhs) with carresponding trade receivables on the basis of evidence of service tax payments provided by
tenants.”

New and amended standards
Amendments to Standards effective 1 April 2023

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has natified Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023 dated 31 March
2023 to amend the fallowing Ind AS which are effective from 01 April 2023 which have been considered by the Company for the
reporting period commencing from April 1,2023.

Ind AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements

The amendments require companies to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their significant accounting
policies. Accounting policy information, together with other information, is material when it can reasona bly be expected to
influence decisions of primary users of general purpose financial statements.

Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes

The amendments clarify how companies account for deferred tax on transactions such as leases and decommissioning
obligations. The amendments narrowed the scope of the recognition exemption in paragraphs 15 and 24 of Ind AS 12
(recognition exemption) so that it no longer applies to transactions that, on initial recognition, give rise to equal taxable and
deductible temporary differences.

Ind AS 8 — Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors
The amendments will help entities to distinguish between accounting policies and accounting estimates. The definition of a
change in accounting estimates has been replaced with a definition of accounting estimates. Under the new definition,

accounting estimates are “monetary amounts in financial statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty”.

Entities develop accounting estimates if accounting policies require items in financial statements to be measured in a way that
involves measurement uncertainty.

The amendments listed above did not have any impact on the amounts recognised in current period and are not expected to
significantly affect the future periods.
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ons. unless otherwiss o

Note 48
Froperty, plant and equipment and Rlght of use assets as at March 31, 2024

Freshald land Freshold buildings Plant and machinery  Furniture and fictures  Offiee equi Vehicles Electrical installations Total Right of use (ROW) o—IL.
Gross canrying value
Gross block
Dpening B9.22 1,545.47 1,201.84 55B.17 73.11 07.84 26.77 2635 437.24 4,166.10 639,20
Additans - - B8.00 B.01 839 = 4.75 7 157 1172 -
sposals + : ’ - . . . . = - .
Clozing balance 85.22 1,545.47 1,285.94 566.18 BLSD 207.84 31.52 26.35 439,81 427762 633.29
Accumulatad depreciation
Opening - 776.80 741.69 A09.88 40,75 143,00 .49 13.87 296,04 2,442.53 56,82
Charge lar the year = 73.00 B250 28.81 5.7 984 334 3.69 2591 232.46 42,81
Dispasals i - = - = - g * = ~ -
Closing balanee - BA9.ED a24.19 A38.69 46,02 152.94 23.83 17.57 321.95 2,674.93 99.43
Met Block B9.22 685,680 46575 12749 35,48 m&hu 1. mu 117.46 1,602.83 mu@hl
Froperty, plant and equipment and Right of use asset as at March 31, 2073
Freehold land Freahald buildings Plantand machinery  Furniture and fixtures  Offics Vehicles Electrical installations Total Right of use (ROU) assot®
Gross carrying value
Gross block
Opening 8022 1,545.47 1,150.79 504498 68.77 207.88 20.59 20.21 412,18 4,020.02 635.25
Additions - - 5182 56,29 4,65 * 618 1259 25.06 156.69 -
Dsgnsals - - .77 3.08 031 - - 545 - 10.61 -
Closing balance £9.22 1,545.47 1,201.94 558.17 7311 107.84 2677 26.35 437.24 4,166.10 639,29
Accumulated depreciation
Cpening - 696,32 B56.47 379.67 36.07 131.26 1858 1542 266.79 2,200.60 .21
Charge for the year = B0.48 B5.66 3255 4.88 1174 191 356 29,35 25042 4261
Disposils - - 0.44 2.34 0.z0 - = 551 = 8.49 -
Clasing balance - T76.80 TALES A05.88 40,75 143.00 20,43 1387 296.04 2,442.53 56.82
Net Block 19,22 FEA.67 A60.25 148,29 32.36 64,84 6.28 12.48 14130 .—.umu SBLAT
® For thsclosure 1¢lated (o leases, refer note 154
fotes
1. 8l the immavable properties are in the name of the Campany.
2. No revaluation has been done during the year with respect tao property, plant and equipment,
3, Details of scheduls of charge on property s laned in Nate 17,
MNote a8
Capital Works in Progress {CWIR)
As pt Warch 31, 2024 As st March 31, 2023
Dpening Balance Ba.bl B5.37
Additions FE.41 27.38
Captalisation 5113 26,14
Closing balance 53.85 B6.61
Capital works in progress ageing
As st Mareh 31, 2024
oWIp Amount in CWIP for @ period for Total
Less than 1 year | 1-2 years | 2-3years | More than 3 years
Projects n pragress 68.23 | =l | 15.02 | 1064 9389
As at March 31, 2023
owip Amount in OWIF for a period for Total
Less than 1 year | 1-2 years | 2-3years |__More than 3 years
Frojacts in progress 23.22 ] 4357 | 536 | 14.46 8661

Mote:

1. There are no OWIF for which completon is overdus of has exceeded its cost compared to its onginal budget.
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(Al amounts are i indian Rupees millions, upless athersose stated)

MNote 54
Investment properties as at March 31, 2024

Freehald land Freehold buildings Total
Gross carrying valie
Grass block
Opening 27192 4,394.83 4,666.75
Additions 49.67 49.67
Disposals - - -
Closing balante 27192 4,434.50 4,716.42
Accumulated depreciation
Opening * 1,259.09 1,250.0%
Charge for the year 205.97 205497
Disposals . F
Clu:ﬂ!alan:e 1,465.06 146506
MNet block 27192 287944 3,251,356
investment properties as at March 31, 2023
Freehold land Frezhald buildings Tatal
Gross carrying value
Gross bleck
Opaning 7152 #,348.00 4,619.96
Additions - 46.79 46,79
Disposals = a .
Closing balance 271.82 4,394.83 4,066.75
Accumulated depreciation
Dpening 1,058.97 1,058.47
Charge for the year - 20012 20012
Disposals - - -
Closing balance 1,258,098 1,259,09
Net biock 271.92 3,135.74 3,807 66
Motes
L All the immaovable proparties ate in the name of the Company.
2. No revaluation has been dane during the year with respect te Investment property.
3. Detalls of schedula of charge on ble property is I Note 17,
MNote 5B
] properties under development (IPUD)
As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Opening balance 10.64 3,15
Additions 201,42 54.28
Ca Ellallsed during the year 48.67 #6.79
Closing bslznce 162.39 10.64
Investment property under development ageing schedule:
HAs at March 31, 2024
property under Amount in IPUD for a period of Total
Less than 1 year 1-2year Z-3year More than 3 years
Project in progress 15239 - - 152,39
Total 162.39 - = - 16233
As at March 31, 2023
1 property under devel Amount in IPUD for a period of Total
Less than 1 year I-2year Z-3year Mare than 3 years
10.54 - - - 10.64
10.64 - - = 10.64
MNotes
1. There are no IPUD for which campletion is sverdue or has exceeded its cost compared to Its ariginal budgat.
Infarmation regarding income and exponditure of investmant property
As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Income derved from Investmeant proparties 232534 2,034.34
Less: Diract arlting from i properties 434,27 615.62
that generated incerme during the year
Profit from investment properties before depreciation and indirect 1,851.07 101873
expenses
Less : depreciation 10587 200,12
Profit from Investment properties before indirect expenses 1,685.10 1,218.61
e ==
al falr value of the properties are as under
fs at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Opening Balance 32,663.14 31,213.20
Fair value movement for the yoar 1,331.68 1.403.15
Purchases - -
Capitalisad during the year 49.67 4679
Closing as at year and 34,044.49 32,663.14
——
Description of valuation techniques used and key inputs to Investment
Significant unohservable Range [welgh ]
Yanstien etvilne inputs As st March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Investment property Market mathod Leasable zrea 13,356,250 sqft 13,25,320 sqft
(repl cast) Rate adopted INA 21,184-37, 184 persoft INR 21,000-36,000 per saft

Description of valuation method

These valuations are based on valuations performed by Siddharth S, Thite & Assaclates for the years anded March 31, 2024 and March 31,2023,
) Fules, 2017, The valuations were conducted through a market rate approach. Under this approach the market value has been obtained by considering the sale consideration of the similar
properties, Under this method average rats hos been abtained from various sale |

Valuers and Val

properties degrecated market rate s taken for valuation.

{or similar p

and r

valuers as defined under Rule 2 of Companies

after adjusting various positive and negative Tactors associzted with the preperty under valuation. Far constructed




Ventive Hospitality Private Limited

(Formerly known as ICC Realty (India) Private Limited)

CIN: U45201PN2002PTC143638
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(All amounts are in Indian Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

Note 6
Intangible assets as at March 31, 2024
Computer software Total

Gross carrying value
Opening balance 3.39 3.39
Additions 1.33 1.33
Disposals B -
Closing balance 4.72 4.72
Accumulated amortisation
Opening balance 3.23 3.23
Charge during the year 0.44 0.44
Disposals - -
Closing balance 3.67 3.67
Net block 1.05 1.05

Intangible assets as at March 31, 2023

Computer software Total

Gross carrying value
Opening balance 3.39 3.39
Additions = 3
Disposals - -
Closing balance 3.39 3.39
Accumulated amortisation
Opening balance 3.23 3.23
Charge during the year - -
Disposals - -
Closing balance 3.23 3.23
Net block 0.16 0.16

[THIS SPACE HAS INTENTIONALLY BEEN LEFT BLANK]
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Al amounts are in Indian Rupess millions, unless atherwise stated)

Note 7
Financial assets
Non-current Current
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Investment in mutual funds (at fair value through profit or loss)
Nil units (Mareh 31, 2023: 55,079.53 units) in HOFC Overnight Fund - - - 181.90
Regular plan - Growth
Nil units {March 31, 2023 : 69,073.73 units) in HDFC Liguid Fund - - - - 302.82
Regular plan - Growth
6,55,119.40 umts (March 31, 2023 : NIl units) in HSBC Liguid Fund - - - 1,576.20 -
Direct plan - Growth
Total investments - - 1,576.20 484.72
Aggregated book value of quoted investments - - 1,576.20 484.72
Aggregated market value of quoted investments - - 1,576.20 484.72
Note 8
Loans
Non-current Current
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Unsecured, considered good - at amortised cost
Loans ta related parties (refer nate 37) - - 710.00 -
Total Loans - - 710.00 -
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
ta h
Amount of loan or Percentage to the total Amount of loan or Rayratagetothe

total Loans and
Advances in the
nature of loans

advance in the nature of
loan outstanding

advance in the nature of Loans and Advances in
loan outstanding the nature of loans

Type of Borrower

Promoter - - - -
Directors - - - -
KMPs - - - -
Related Parties 710.00 100% - -
Details of outstanding loans:
Name of the loanee Rate of interest Due date March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Panchshil Trade and Techpark Private Limited (refer note | below) 8.75% On demand 650.00 -
Panchshil Trade and Techpark Private Limited (refer note Il below) 9.75% On demand 50.00 -
Panchshil Trade and Techpark Private Limited (refer note 1i| below) 9.75% On demand 10.00 -
710.00 -

I. The loan has been utilised by Panchshil Trade & Tachpark Private Limited to repay the loan availed by it for the acquisition of KBJ Restaurants and Hotel Private Limited.
Refer note 43 for details.

II. The loan has been utilised by Panchshil Trade & Techpark Private Limited to provide a loan to KBI Restaurants and Hotel Private Limited. Refer note 43 for detalls,

lIl. The loan has been utilised by Panchshil Trade & Techpark Private Limited to provide a loan to KBJ Restaurants and Hotel Private Limited. Refer note 43 for details,

Note 9
Other financial assets

Current
March 31, 2024

Non-current
March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2023

Unsecured, considered good

Other bank balances (refer note 148) 6.61 6.61 = 77.82
Security deposit (at amortised cost) 78.77 71.89 28.61 28.22
85.38 78.50 28.61 106.04

Interest accrued but not due - - 63,23 17.75
Other receivables - - - -

g pdpil' ki - 63,23 17.75
Total other financial assets 85.38 78.50 91.84 123.79
—_——




Ventive Hospitality Private Limited

{Farmerly known as [CC Realty {India) Private Limited)

CIN: U45201PN2002PTC143638

Notes to the Financial Statements

[All amounts are in [ndian Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

Note 10
Income tax assets (net)
Non-current Current
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2029 March 31, 2023
Advance income-tax (net of provision for taxation of INR Nil, March 153.60 154,95 - =
31, 2023: INR 279.15 million}
Total income tax asset (net) ) 153.60 154.95 - -
Note 11
Other assets
Non-current Current
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 20249 March 31, 2023
Unsecured, considered good
Unbilled revenue* 128.05 96.20 76.63 75.83
Capital advances 29.31 17.51 - -
Deposit paid under dispute 2.86 - - -
Advances to suppliers 31.36 33,30
Balances with government authorities - - 071 071
Prepaid expenses# 16.47 24.18 37.81 19.75
Total other assets 176.69 137.8% 146.51 129.59
——

* The amount includes lease equalisation reserve of INR 163.67 million (March 31, 2023: INR 119.25 million) on account of Ind AS 116,

# The amount includes IPO expenses of INR 12.21 million (March 31, 2023 Nil) carried forward as prepaid expenses. These expenses will be adjusted against security premium balance
arising upon issue of fresh shares to the extent allowable in accordance with requirement of Companies Act, 2013 and applicable Ind-AS and balance will be tharged to statement of
profit and loss.

Note 12
Inventaries {valued at lower of cost and NRV)

Current
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Food, beverages and other supplies 44.60 37.96

Others 114 Le6

Total Inventaries 45.74 39.62
Mote 13

Trade receivables

Current
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Secured, considerad good 77.55 66.97
Unsecured, considered good
from related parties (refer note 37) 20.28 35,29
from others 7530 137.31
Credit impaired 42.94 44.01
216.07 283.58
Less : Allowance for credit impaired 42.94 44.01
Total Trade receivables 173.13 23957

No trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the company either severally or jointly with any other person,
There are no unbilled receivables, hence the same is not disclosed in the ageing schedule,

For explanations on the Company's credit risk management process - refer note 39.

Trade receivables are non-interest bearlng and are generally on terms of 0-30 days.

The net carrying value of trade receivables is considered a reasonable approximation of fair value,
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Trade receivables ageing as at March 31, 2024

Outstanding for the following periods from due date of payment#

{iv] Disputed Trade receivables - considered good

SRR Mot Due Less than 6 months | 6 manths -1 year 1-2years 2 -3 years More than 3 years i
{i) Undisputed Trade receivables - cansidered goad 0.43 117.45 17.53 19.26 3.49 14.97 173.13
Undisputed Trade receivables - which have significant increase in credit - - - - - - -
risk
) Undisputed Trade receivables - credit impaired - 2.13 0.48 5.55 34.78 42.94
{iv] Disputed Trade recejvables - cansidered good - » - = - - -
(v) Disputed Trade receivables - which have significant increase in credit - - - - - - -
risk
(vl) Disputed Trade receivables - credit impaired - - - - - - -
Trade receivables ageing as at March 31, 2023
Pt Outstanding for the following periods from due date of paymenti Yotal
Not Due Less than 6 months | 6 manths - 1 year 1-2 years 2 - 3 years More than 3 years
(I} Undisputed Trade recejvables - considered good 0.64 184.09 27.81 12.06 1.80 13.17 239,57
(i} Undisputed Trade receivables - which have significant increase in credit - - - - - - -
risk
i) Undisputed Trade raceivables - credit impaired - 0.21 0.36 2.22 0.43 40.79 44.01

(v) Disputed Trade receivables - which have significant increase in credit
risk

(1) Disputed Trade recelvables - credit impairad

# Disclosure has been prepared on the basis of transaction date where due date has not been specified.

[THIS SPACE HAS INTENTIONALLY BEEN LEFT BLANK]
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Note 14A
Cash and cash equival
Current
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Cash and cash equlvalents
Balances with banks:
= On current accounts 263.42 224.80
— Deposits with original maturity of less than 3 months 60,00 -
Cash on hand 0.23 0.59
Total eash and cash equivalents 324.25 225.39
Note 14B
Other bank balances
Non-current Current
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Other bank balance
Deposits with original maturity for more than 12 months* 6.61 6.61 - 77.82
Deposits with original maturity for more than 3 manths but less - - 384.97 367.80
than 12 manths*
661 6.61 384.97 445.62
Amount disclosed under non-current financial assets {refer note 9) (6.61) (6.61) - 177.82)
Total Other bank balances £ - 384.97 367.80

* Deposit kept against DSRA, bank guarantee and sinking fund of INR 135.52 million {March 31, 2023: INR 182.75 million).
Cash at banks eamns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. Short-term deposits are made for varying periods of between one day and three months, depending on
the immediate cash requirements of the Company, and eam interest at the respective short-term deposit rates.

Break up of financial assets carried at amortised cost

Non-current Current
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Trade receivables - - 173.13 238.57
Loans - - 710.00 -
Cash and cash equivalents - » 324.25 22539
Other bank balances - - 384.97 367.80
Other financial assets 85.38 78.50 91.84 123.79
Total financial assets carried at amortised cost 85.38 78.50 1,684.19 956.55

[THIS SPACE HAS INTENTIONALLY BEEN LEFT BLANK]




Ventive Hospitality Private Limited

{Farmerly known as ICC Realty (Indfa) Private Limited)

CIN: UA5201PN2002PTC143638

Notes to the Financial Statements

{All amounts are in Indan Rupees millions, unless otherwse stated)

Note 15
Equity share capital

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Authorised shares
2,00,00,000 (March 31, 2023; 2,00,00,000) equity shares of INR 10 sach 200.00 200.00
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up share capital
1,04,42,957 [March 21, 2023: 1,04,42,857) equity shares of INR 10 each fully paid 104.a4 104.44

104.44 104.44
(a) Reconciliation of the shares fing at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period
Equity shares
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
No. of shates A in Million No. of shares Amount in Millien

Equity shares
At the beginning of the year 1,04,43,957 104.44 1,07,14,000 107,14
Buyback of shares - - (2,70,043} {2.70)
|ssue of shares - = ~ -
CQutstanding at the end of the year 1,04,43 957 104.44 1,04,43 957 104.44

(b} Terms/rights attached to equity shares
The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of INR 10 per share, Ezch holder of equity shares is entitied to one vote per share. The Company declares and pays dividends in

Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the sharehalders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. The Company has declared and paid interim

dividend during the year ended March 31, 2023. The interim dividend declared by the Board of Directors was approved by the shareholders in the extra-ordinary general meeting.
In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remalning assets of the Company, after distribution of preferential amaunts, if any. The

distribution will be in propartion to the number of equity shares held by the sharehalders,

[c) Details of shareholders holding mare than 5% shares in the Company
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
% halding in the class No. of shares % holding in the class No. of shares
Name of the shareholder
Equity shares of INR 10 each fully paid
Premsagar Infra Realty Private Limited 45.34% 47,35,232 4534 % 47,35,232
BRE Asia ICC Holdings Ltd 50.00% 52,21,978 50.00 % 52,721,978

As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/mermbers and other declarations recelved from shareholders regarding beneficial Interest, the above shareholding represents
both legal and beneficial ownerships of shares.

{d] Details of shareholders holding more of promoters

March 31, 2024 % Change during the March 31, 2023 % Change during

No. of shares % holding in the class year No. of shares % holding in the class the year
Name of Promoter
Equity shares of INR 10 each fully paid
Mr. Atul l. Chordia 2,55,662 2.45% - 2,55,662 2.45% -
Premsagar Infra Realty Private LUmited 47,35,232 45,34% - 47,35,232 45.34% -
Mr. Atul I, Chordia - HUF 2,31,085 2.21% - 2,31,085 2.21% =
BRE Asia ICC Holdings Limited 52,21,978 50.00% - 52,21,978 50.00% ~
1,04,43,957 100.00% 1,04,43,957 100.00%

{e] Equity shares bought back by the Company during the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting date:
. As at March 31,2024  Asat March 31, 2023 Asat March 31,2022  As at March 31, 2021
No. of shares No. of shares No. of shares No. of shares
Equity shares bought back by the Company (refer note below) - 2,70,043 - -

As at March 31, 2020
No. of shares
Equity shares bought back by the C {refer note below] 7,76,000

MNote:

As at March 31, 2023

- The Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on Novemnber 16, 2022 and the shareholders by way of Special Resolution on November 17, 2022, appraved the buy back of the fully
paid equity shares of the face value of INR 10 gach of the Company from its shareholder including prometers and promoter group of the Company as on the record date, on a proportionate basis at
a grice of INR 2,520 per share for an aggregats amount not excesding INR 680.51 million. The Company completed the buy back process on November 21, 2022 and has complied with all the
requisite formalities with Reglstrar of Companies and other regulatory authorities,

- In accordance with section 69 af the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has created ‘Capital Redemption Reserve' af (NR 2.70 millian equal to the nominal valus of the shares bought back as an
appropriztion from Securities Premium Account.

As at March 31, 2020

- The Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held an July 17, 2019 and the shareholders by way of Special Resolution an July 18, 2019, approved the buy back of the fully paid squity
shares of the face value of INR 10 each of the Company from its shareholder including prometers and promoter group of the Campany as on the record date, on a propertionate basis ata price of
INR 1,507 per share for an aggregate amount not exceeding INR 1,189.43 million. The Company completed the buy back process on July 22, 2018 and has complied with all the requisite formalities
with Registrar of Companies and other regulatory authorlties.

- In accordance with seclion 63 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has created "Capital Redemprion feserve’ of INR 7.76 million equal to the neminal value of the shares bought back asan
appropriation from Securities Premium Account.

(1) Share Split:
- On and from the Record Date of July 12, 2024, the equity shares of the Company have been sub- divided, such that 1 {one) eg
divided into 10 (ten) equity shares having face value of INR 1/- each, fully paid-up, ranking pari-passu in all respects.
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Note 16
Other equity

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Securities premium
Balance as per the last financial statements
Less: Utilised towards buy back of shares
Less: Transferred to capital redemption reserve
Closing balance

Retained Earnings
Balance as per the last financial statements
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income
Less: Utilised for interim dividend
Less: Tax on buyback of shares
Net surplus in the statement of profit and loss

Capital redemption Reserve
Balance as per the last financial statements
Add: Transferred from securities premium
Closing balance

Total other equity

829.77 1,510.27

: (677.80)

2 (2.70)

829.77 829.77
704.51 497.16
1,663.17 1,312.73
3.65 (0.72)

- (967.01)

: (137.65)
2,371.33 704.51
39.00 36.30
- 2.70

39.00 39.00
3,240.10 1,573.28

Nature and purpose of reserves

Securities premium

Securities premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve can be utilised only for limited purposes such
as issuance of bonus shares in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

Retained Earnings

Retained earnings are the profits/(loss) that the Company has earned/incurred till date, less any transfers to general reserve,
dividends or other distributions paid to shareholders. Retained earnings include re-measurement loss / (gain) on defined
benefit plans, net of taxes that will not be reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Capital redemption reserve

During financial year ended March 31, 2013, March 31, 2014, March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2023 the Company bought back its
shares and in order to comply with the requirements of the Company law, the Company has created capital redemption

reserve.

[THIS SPACE HAS INTENTIONALLY BEEN LEFT BLANK]
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MNote 17
Barrowings (at amortised cost)
MNon-current Current
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Term loans (secured)
Indian rupee |loan 2 (secured) [Refer below note 1] 282928 2,918.55 54,52 93.37
Indizn rupee loan 3 [sscured] [Refer below note 3] 1,164.68 1,201.57 37.20 37.18
3,993.96 4,121.12 132.12 130.55

The above amount includes
Secured borrowings 3,993.96 4,131.12 13212 13055
Unsecured borrowings - . - -
Total borrowings 3,993.96 4,121.12 132.12 130,55

The Maturity analysis of borrowings is disclosed in note 33,
All term loans have been utlised for the purpose for which they were raised.

Note 1: Indian rupee loan

Secured by first charge over land and building of the project, receivables from all tenants pertaining to ICC Tech Park, first charge over collection generated fram |CC Tech Park. The loan carries
interest at the rate of 8.65% - 9.33% p.a ( March 31, 2023 : B1B% - B.95% p.a) payable manthly. The loan is repayable in 120 months from September 2022, The Company has satisfied all debt
covenants prescribed in the terms of bank loan. The Company has not defaulted on any loans payable.

Mote 2: Indian rupee loan

Indian rupee Term Loan carries the rate of interest of 5.05% - 9.26% (March 31, 2023: 8.69% - 9.17% p.a) payable monthly, The entire loan shall be repayable in 120 menthly instalments, starting
from September 2022, The term loan is secured by first charge over land, building & receivable pertaining to ICC Trade Tower, first charge over collections generated from |CC Trade Tower, The
Company has satisfied all debt covenants prescribed in the tarms of bank loan, The Company has nat defaulted on any loans payable,

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities
Opening Balance of borrowings 4,251.67 4,150.01
Add:
Proceeds from borrowings - 4,300.00
Accrual of Interest 38591 415,35
Less: =
Repayment of barrowings (129.00) (4,061.40)
Payment of interest {384.30) (599.90)
Nan-cash changes 1.80 761
Closing balance from borrowings 4,126.08 4,251.67
For changes in liablitles arising from financing activities due to leases, refer note 354,
Note 18
Lease liability
Non-current Current
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Lease liability [refer note 354) 558.12 573.88 15,75 12,61
558.12 573.88 15.75 12.61
MNote 19
Other financial liabilities
Non-current Current
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
At amortised cost
Security deposits 393.05 351.11 455.34 398.94
Employee related liabilities - - 12.32 1641
Retention money - - 7.43 B6.11
Payahle for property, plant and equipment - - 28.97 1775
Sinking fund = 2458 - -
Total financial liabilities 393.05 375.69 504,06 439.21
Note 20
Trade payables
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprisas and small enterprises 9.57 18.73
- Total outstanding dues of creditors ather than micro enterprises and 266.79 21801
small enterprises (MSME)
Total trade payables 276.36 235.64
Trade payable to related parties (refer note 37) 3.52 5.28
272.54 230.36

Trade payable to others

Trade payables are nen-interest bearing and are generally on te
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Trade payables ageing as at March 31, 2024

Outstanding for the following periods from due date of payment# Total
Mot due Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
(1) MSME 5.00 2.89 1.35 = 0.33 9.57
{ii) Others 175.03 85.98 4.69 0.15 0.94 266.79
(ill} Disputed dues - MSME = - s - ~ -
(iv) Disputed dues - Others 2 - E - - -
Trade payables ageing as at March 31, 2023
Outstanding for the following periods from due date of payment# Total
Not due Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
(i) MSME 12.57 5.80 - 0.35 0.01 18,73
(i) Others 115.75 100.09 0.15 0.15 0.77 216.91

(ill} Disputed dues - MSME
(iv) Disputed dues - Others

Details of dues to Micro and Small enterprises as defined under MSIVIED Act

, 2006

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to
any supplier at the end of each accounting year

- Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises®

- Interest due on above

16.11
0.22

18.73
0.45

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of
MSMED Act, 2006, along with the amount of payment made to the
supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in
making the payment (which has been paid but beyond the appointed
day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the
MSMED Act, 2006.

1.14

0.36

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at end of each
accounting year

1.36

0.81

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues above are

actually paid to the small enterprises, for the purpose of disallowance
as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act, 2006

4.58

322

* Includes payables towards property, plant and equipment.
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Note 21
Other liabilities
MNon-Current Current
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Contract Liability
Advance from customers*® 5 . 35.24 38.70
Income received in advance** * - 23,81 21.02
Others
Deferrad revenue 65.97 B3.63 38.83 24,24
Service tax payable - - 7.27 727
Statutory dues payable - 16.52 12,22
Value added tax and waorks contract @ax payable - 3.47 4,01
Goods and services tax payable = 52.03 3143
Other liabilities - =
Total other liabilities 65.97 63.63 177.33 138.89

*  Advance from customers is recognized when payment Is received before the related performance obligation is satisfied. This includes advances received fram the customer towards
rooms/foad & beverage/other services. Revenue is recognized once the performance obligation is met |.e. on room stay / sale of foed and beverage / provision of other hospitality
services, Performance obligations are satisfied within a period of 12 manths. Revenue recognised during the year includes INR 28.70 milllon (March 31, 2023: INR 73.32 million) from

amounts included in contract liabilities at the beginning of the year. No revenue is recognised during the year [March 31, 2023: Nil) fram performance obligations satisfied |or

partially satisfied} in previous years.

** Includes membership fee recelved In advance from customers / members as part of membership program offered from time to time. Performance obligations are satisfled within a
period of 12 months. Revenue recognised during the year includes INR 21.02 million {March 31, 2023: INR 31.81 million) from amounts included In contract lisbilitles at the beginning
of the year. No revenue Is recognised during the year (March 31, 2023: Nil] fram perfarmance obligations satisfied [or partially satisfied) in previous years,

Note 22
Non-current Current
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Employee benefit obligations
Provision for leave encashment 5.76 4.52 2.32 2,14
Provision for gratuity {refer note 34), 14.37 13.08 4.47 4.25
Total provisions 20.13 17.60 6.79 6.39
Note 23
Current tax liability (net)
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Current tax liabilities (net of tax asset of INR 355.40 million, March 31, 2023: 31.51 -
Nil}
Total current tax lizhility (net) 31.51 -
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Note 24
Revenue from operations

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Year ended
March 31, 2023

Revenue from rental income 2,033.48 1,779.63
Revenue from contracts with customers
I. Services transferred over time
From commercial leasing and mall operations
Maintenance and parking charges 268.28 230.21
Other activities incidental to commercial leasing (net) 14.52 12.65
From hotel operations
Room income 1,082.10 962.63
Other hotel services including banguet income and membership fees 244,44 198.51
1,609.34 1,404.00
Il. Goods transferred at a point in time
From commercial leasing and mall operatinns
Revenue from sale of construction materials and fitout 7.39 8.02
From haotel operations
Sale of food and beverages . 1,11061 1,096.78
Erom windmill operations
Revenue from windmill [net of windmill income of INR 118.95 million (March 31, 2023: INR 124.31 18.98 19.70
million) adjusted against power, fuel and light expenses]
1,136.98 1,124.50
Total revenue from contracts with customers 2,746.32 2,528.50
Total revenue from operations 4,779.80 4,308.13
Reconciliation of the amount of revenue recognised in the stat t of profit & loss with the contracted price
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Revenue as per contracted price 2,789.91 2,573.13
Adjustments -
Discount 43.59 44.63
Revenue from contract with customers 2,746.32 2,528.50
Disaggregated revenue recognition
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Revenue recognised over a period of time 1,609.34 1,404.00
Revenue recognised at 2 point of time 1,136.98 1,124.50
2,746.32 2,528.50
Contract balances
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Balances at the beginning of the year
Trade Receivables 149.04 49.45
Contract liability - Advances from customers 16.68 38.60
Balances at the end of the year
Trade Receivables 68.90 149.04
Contract liability - Advances from customers 22.54 16.68
Transaction price allocated to the ining performance obligation
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Expected to be recognised as revenue over the next one year 22.54 16.68
Expected to be recognised as revenue beyond the next one year - -
22,54 16.68
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Note 25
Other income
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Interest income on
- Bank deposits 2147 27.00
- Inter corporate deposit (refer note 37) 50.40 5.98
- Income tax refund - 7.40
- Others 3.73 2.66
75.60 43,04
Net gain on disposal of property, plant and equipments - 0,59
Profit on sale of current investment 15.29 8.96
Liability no longer required written back 5.25 1.21
Fair value gain on mutual funds measured at fair value through profit or loss 50.45 4.44
Sale of SEIS License - 21.75
Miscellaneous income 20.68 25,42
167.28 109.41
Note 26
Cost of materials consumed
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Cost of food and beverages consumed
Inventory at the beginning of the year 37.96 27.76
Add: Purchases 329.14 34038
367.10 368.14
Less: Inventory at the end of the year 44,60 37.96
Cost of food and beverages consumed 322.50 330.18
Cost of Construction material sold =77 142
324.27 331,60
Note 27
Employee benefit expenses
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Salaries, wages and bonus 303,02 248.35
Contribution to provident and other funds 16.19 14.98
Gratuity expenses (refar note 34) 6.88 476
Staff welfare expenses 48.37 29.84
374.46 297.93

[THIS SPACE HAS INTENTIOMALLY BEEN LEFT BLANK]
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Note 28

Other exg

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Year ended
March 31, 2023

Open access charges 32.09 32.13
Power, fuel and light 240.43 233.72
Less: credit for energy generated by windmills {118.95) (124.31)
121.48 109.41
Rates and taxes 131.65 133.16
Insurance charges 18.84 2111
Housckeoping cxpenses 88.20 83.68
Repairs and maintenance
Plant and machinery 65.47 63.40
Buildings 68.44 25988
Vehicle 0.24 113
Others 2.80 224
Advertising and sales promotion 187.80 160.85
Travelling and conveyance 28.70 20.98
Printing and stationery 4.43 5.92
Legal and professional fees 89.17 J1.18
Linen, laundry and cleaning 29.06 30.10
Internet, telephone and other operating supplies 107.90 93.39
Auditors' remuneration {refer note 28.01 below) 5.44 3.08
Other expenses incidental to leasing activity (net) 2237 30.27
Asset management charges 31.58 28.55
Royalty fees 51.64 24.47
Management fees 75.20 50.11
Security expenses 43.84 37.84
Pravision for doubtful receivables and advances 7.98 4.03
Bad debts written off 3.57 o.do
Loss on discarded of property, plant and equipments - -
Advances written off 0.00" 0.54
Exchange loss {net) 4.08 6,13
C5R Expenses (refer note 28.02 below) 13.50 8.80
Miscellaneous expenses 7.25 4.73
i 1,242.76 1,287.09
* Amount is less than INR 0.01 million
Note 28.01
Auditors' Rermuneration
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
As auditor:
- Audit fee 5.44 2.58
- Reimbursement of expenses - 0.11
- Limited review - 0.35
- others = 0.04
5.44 3.08
Note 28.02

Details of CSR expenditure:

As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a corporate social respensibility (CSR) committee has been formed by the Company. The areas for CSR activities are the activities
mentioned in the Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013. Amount spent during the year on activities which are specified in Schedule Vil of the Companies Act, 2013 are as

mentioned below :

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

(a) Amount required to be spent by the Company during the year and approved by the Board of Directors 13.50 8.79
{b) Amount of expenditure incurred during the year

(i) Construction/acquisition of any asset - -

(i) On purposes ather than (i) abave {in cash) 13.50 B.20
(€} shortfall at the end of the year " i
(d) total of previous years shortfall - -
(e) reason for shortfall NA NA
{F} nature of C5R activities

- Contribution to Charitable Trust (Educational & medical expenses) 13.50 8.80
() details of related party transactions, e.g., contribution to a trust controlled by the company in relation te CSR Refer Note 37 Refer Note 37

expenditure as per relevant Accounting Standard,
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Note 29
Depreciation and amortisation expense
: Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment and right to use assets (refer note 44) 275.08 283.04
Depreciation of investment property (refer note 54) 205.97 200.12
Amortisatien of intangible assets (refer note 6) 0.44 -
481.49 493.16
Mote 30
Finance costs
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Interest expense
- on bank facilities 387.76 197.22
-on Inter corporate deposit [refer note 37) = 0.60
- on Debentures - 142.44
- on financial instruments at amortised cost 83.69 72.50
- on others 0.00' 271
471.45 415.47
Other borrowing costs
Bank charges 0.77 0.40
0.77 0.40
Total finance cost 472.22 415.87

* Amount is below INR 0.01 million,

Note 31
Earnings per share (EPS)

On and from the Record Date of July 12, 2024, the equity shares of the Company have been sub- divided, such that 1 (one) equity share having face value of INR 10/- each, fully paid-

up, stands sub-divided into 10 {ten) equity shares having face value of INR 1/- each, fully paid-up, ranking pari-passu in all respects. The Earnings per share for all the years presented
have been restated considering the face value of INR 1/- each in accordance with Ind AS 33 -"Earnings per share",

The following reflects the profit and shares data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Numerator for basic and diluted EPS
Net profit after tax 1,663.17 1,312.73
Denominator for basic and diluted EPS
Weighted average number of equity shares in calculation of basic and diluted EPS (in numbers) 104.44 106.19
Basic and diluted earnings per share of face value of INR 1 each 1592 12.36

[THIS SPACE HAS INTENTIONALLY BEEN LEFT BLANK)
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Note 32
Income tax

The major components of income tax expense for the years endad March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023:

Statement of profit and loss section

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Current income tax:
Current income tax charge 386.91 279.15
Adjustment for current tax of previous years 130 0.01
Deferred tax - -
Total current tax expense 38871 279.16
OCI Section:
Deferred tax related to items recognised in OC| during the year - -
Incame tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss 388.71 279.16
Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate for the year ended
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Accounting profit before tax 2,051.88 1,591.88
Computed tax expense
At India's statutory income tax rate of 29.12% (March 31, 2023; 29.12%) 587.51 463.55
Adjustments for:
Income from specified business U/s 35 AD of Income Tax Act set off from brought forward losses (170.83) {181.70)
Income exempt from tax (net of expenses) (22.486) (25.49)
Adjustment in current tax for prior period 1.80 0.01
Impact of changing tax rate for payment under MAT - 7.98
MAT cradit utilisation {25.28) -
Deferred tax asset not created on account of temporary difference 198 12.21
Other non deductible expenses for tax purpose 6.00 .59
At the effective income tax rate of 17.77% (March 31, 2023: 17.54%)
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss 388.71 279.16
Statement of Balance sheet section
Particulars Balance sheet
As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Deferred Tax Asset
Deferred income on fair valuation of security deposit 30.56 25,59
Provision for gratuity £ 549 5.05
Provision for bonus 2.79 4.09
Provision for leave encashment 2.35 1.94
Provision for bad and doubtful debts 12.50 13.76
Lease liability 167.11 170.78
Tax losses 593.58 764.42
814.40 985.63
Deferred Tax Liability
Accelerated depreciation and amortisation for tax purpose {including ROU) |678.84) (676.91)
Fair valuation of security deposit {31.12) (25.84)
Fair valuation of investments in mutual fund (14.69) (1.29)
Unbilled revenue (47.66) (49.72)
Others - (0.21)
(772.31) (753.98)
Net deferred tax assets 42,09 23165

Net deferred tax assets recognised in Balance sheet#

# Deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent of Deferred tax liability based on assessment carried out by management and in view of there
being no reasonable certainty for availability of sufficlent future taxable income against which the deferred tax assets as at March 31, 2024

and March 31, 2023 can be realised, the same has not been recognlsed. Accordingly, tax asset has been recognised anly to the

extent of deferred tax liability.
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Tax losses and MAT credit available for set off against future taxable profits of the company are mentioned below:
Particulars March 31, 2024
A Offsetting maximum period
Specified Business |osses 2,047.49 |Indefinite
anrticulars March 31, 2023
Amount Offsetting maximum period
Specified Business losses 2,634.12 |indefinite
Minimum Alternate Tax Credit
AY. 20189-20 20.37 [31st March 2034
ALY, 2023-24 4.91 |31st March 2038

Deferred tax assets have not been recognized in respect of these losses and MAT credit as they may not be used to offset taxable profits and there are no other tax planning opportunities
or other evidence of recoverability in the near future. If the Company were able to recognize all unrecognized deferred tax assets, the profit would increase by INR 593.04 milllen {31
March 2023: INR 764.42 million).

[THIS SPACE HAS INTENTIONALLY BEEN LEFT BLANK]
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Note 33
Segment Information

The Board of Diractors is the Chief Operating Decision Maker [CODM) and monitars the operating results of its business units separately for the purpose af making decisions about resource allocation
and performance assassment. Ssgment performance is evaluated based on profit or loss and is measured consistently with profit or loss in the Restated Summary Statements, The Company's
financing {including finance costs and finance income) is managed an a Company basis and is not allocated to operating segments,

The Company does nat have any non-current investments and any investment in associates and joint-ventures. There are no non-current financial assets, income tax and deferrad tax assets outside

India.

For management purposes, the Company is organised inta business units based on its products and services and has three reportable ssgments, as follows:
(i} Commercial leasing - Commarclal leasing includes revenue from leasing operations comprising of lease rentals from the propearties given under lease. (Offics space and Mall)
(i) Hospitality - Hospitality includes revenue from hots! operation comprise of revenue from sale of room, food and beverages and allied services related to hotel operation, including income fram

telecommunication and internat senvices.

{iii) Windmills - Windmills includes revenue from windmill which is recognised an credit provided far transmission af electricity based on the data provided by the Maharzshtra State Electricity

Distribution Company Limited in electricity bills.

Year ended March 31, 2024

Particulars Commercial leasing t l Windmills Elimi Total
Revenue
External customers 2,318.15 2,442,63 18.598 - 4,772.80
Inter-segment 7.15 2.98 118.95 (129.08) -
Total revenue 2,325.34 2{145.62 137.93 |129.08! 4,779.80
Segment result 1,685.10 812.99 79.59 (129.08) 2,448,680
Segment assets 5,127.37 1,691.06 58.93 - 6,877.36
Segment liabilities 1,688.87 327.55 0.06 = 2,016.48
Depreciation 342,38 129,17 5.54 - 48149
Capital Expenditure during the year 438,24 23.33 - - 462.56
Year ended March 31, 2023
Particulars C ial leasing Hospitality Windmills Eliminations Total
Revenug
External customers 2,025.67 2,262.76 18.70 - 4,308.13
Inter-segment B.67 - 124.31 [132.08) -
Total revenue 2,034.34 22676 144.01 I:I.SZ.SB:I 4&08.13
Segment result 1,218.60 838.30 B6.89 {132.98) 2,010.82
Segment assets 5,192.25 1,766.53 67.23 - 7,026.01
Segment liabilities 1,604.65 258.51 038 - 1,863.54
Depreciation 344.36 137.06 11.74 - 493.16
Capital Expenditure during the year 155.94 74.92 - - 230.86
Reconciliations to amounts reflected in the financial statements
Year ended Year ended

Reconclliation of profit March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Segment profit 2,448.60 2,010.82
Finance income 75.61 43.04
Other finance costs (472.22) (415.87)
Unallocated expanses (B6.33) {58,51)
Unallocated income 66.22 12.41
Profit before tax 2,051.88 1,591.89
Reconciliation of assets Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Segment operating assets 6,877.36 7,026.01
Income tax asset {net) 153.60 154,95
Other unallocated assets 2,ABB.73 611.87
Total assets 9,519.69 7,792.93
Reconciliation of liabilities Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Segment operating llabilities 2,016.48 1,863.54
Borrowings 4,126.07 4,251.67
Liabilities for current tax 31.51 -
Other unallocated liabllities 1.09
Total liabilities §,175.15
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Note 34
Disclosure puriuant to Employes benefits
A, Definad benefit plans:

o plan amendmants or cur 1eats during the years presesled.

24 In delined benelit obligation and plan assats as at March 31, 2024

s defined benefit grazuity plan. Under the yratuity plan, every employee whao has completed at least e years of service gats o gratusty on departure at 15 days of st drawn salary for each completed year af senace. The scheme is nonfunded

Gratuity cost charged to statement of profit and los

Remeasuramant gains/({losses] in other Intoma

Agril 03, 2023 Senvlce cast Transfer in Interest expensa Sub-total included In Benefitpald  Return on plan assats (excluding  Actuarial changes arlsing from  Acluarial changes arising  Experience Sub-total  Contributionsby Narch 31, 2024
fout statement of profit and amoents Ingluded In Intarest chanjes |n d 1 hanges in financlsl includad in employer
loss oxpense aysumptions assumptions [41d]
Gratulty
Diefined benelil ol {17.33) 15.G8) - (r.20) |6.8B] 181 {010} 10,28} 384 EE |1E.&4)
Fal o plan sty z » . * : . = = ¥ ) + .
B Liatulity {17.33] (5 68) [L.20) _mbl.w_ 191 = {318} {028} 3ns 346 1B 84}
(17.33) 5.8 = |1.20] &.88] 131 = [2.10) {0.25] 3.84 3,46 (1B.83)
Changes in defined banoft obligation and plan assets as at March 31, 2023
Gratulty cost charged to statsment of prafit and loss Remeasurement gains/{lesses) in sther comprabensive income
Apxil 1, 2022 Service cost Transler ln Interast unpense Sut-total included In Denefitpald  Rotum on plan assats {excluding  Actuaral changes arising from  Actuzrial changes arising Enperience Sub-total  Contrlbutions by NMarch 31, 2023
JOut statamant af prodic and amounts includad in intere changes in demographic from changes In financial  adjustments  included in employer
loss apenie) assumptions assumptions no
Gratuity
Delines benafit ablgation {14.08) |4 o2} - (0,74} 14,76} 238 - {008 .50 L9} 10.87) (1733}
v of piin dssets = + . ; = = a : z I -
{14 0Aj 1402} - in.74) [4.76) 238 (0.08] 0.50 {128} (0.87) 117.33]
lity |E [4.02] (0.74) (4.76] u.wlw - (0.08) 0.50 _“_.uh_ (0.87) {17.33)

o benelit

s in it @b def

¢ Company's pfans iro shown below:

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
T10% EEL
9.00% B50%
tepected rate of return on plan assets 00% 0,00%
e Turnaver 36.00% 36,004

Emplnyment 1ALM{20132-14] uly TALM{Z012-14) uly
For Commareit] Leaung

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2033
Uiscoynt rate 730% T EO%
e 4alary increase o.00% 9.00%
e rite ol rivur an plan asets 000k T.00%
Hate of Employee Turrover 500% 4900%

ity Tate Dunng Frployment

IALZ012-14) ult

IALMZ012-14) ul
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A guantitative sensitivity anabysis for significant assumption ks a5 shown below;

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Itlvity lawel i W indefined  Sensitivity {increase|/decrease in dedlned
benelit ebligation {Impact) for level  benefit abligation (Impact] for
tho current year the currant year
Ditount tate L% increase Og% 1% 055
mncrease
15 decroase 076} 1% {259}
decrease
1% intreie {083} 1% .40}
increase
13 decredse oad 1% 038
decrease
1l ragh rate 1% increaie 0os 1% ooz
Inerense
1% docrease (0.05) 1% [0.03)
decraasy
The yanalyys above have heen Based on a method that 2stracolates the impact on defined benedit obligstion as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period. The sensitlvity anabyss are based an a change In a 1)

Avsumption, kesgmg all ath urmptions constant The sensitivity analysis may not b representatave of an sctual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that changes in assumpticns would occur i Belation fram one another,

The {ollowings are the expected futurs benalit for the defined banufit obligation:
fiarch 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
448 4715
Botwoen 2 and 5 yean 1066 1095
Beyond § yrars 1160 1085
Tertil mapected @ ety 26.73 26.15
==

Welghted average duration of defined lan obligation in years (hased an discounted cash flaws)
Marek 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

ratuity 363-1288 3521085
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Note 35A
Leases
a. Company as a lessor

The Company has entered into operating leases on its investment property portfolio consisting of commercial space along with interior fit-outs such as furniture and fixture, air
conditioners, etc and in mall. These leases have terms of between 1 and 5 years. Some of the leases include a clause to enable upward revision of the rental charge on an annual
basis according to prevailing market canditions. The rental agreements in Mallinclude variable lease payments which is dependent on the revenue generated by the lessee.

Rental income recognised by the Company during the year is INR 2,033.48 million (March 31, 2023: INR 1,779.63 million).

Future minimum rentals receivable under non-cancellable operating leases are, as follows:

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Within one year 1,245.32 1,322.29
After one year but not more than five years 1,911.85 2,498.53
Above 5 years = 1532

b. Company as a lessee

The Company has lease contracts for leasehold office used in its operations. Lease of office generally have [ease term of 15 years. The Company's obligations under its leases are

secured by the lessor's title to the |eased assets.
Set out below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognised and the movements as at March 31, 2024:

Right of Use (ROU) Asset Total
Gross Block
As at April 1, 2023 639.29 639.29
Additions - -
Disposals = =
As at March 31, 2024 639.29 639.29
Depreciation
As at April 1, 2023 56.82 56.82
Depreciation charge for the year 42,61 4261
Disposals £ =
As at March 31, 2024 99.43 99.43
Net Block as at March 31, 2024 539.86 539.86
Set out below are the carrying s of right-of-use assets recognised and the movements as at March 31, 2023:

Right of Use {(ROU) Asset Total
Gross Block
As at April 1, 2022 639.29 639.29
Additions = =
Disposals g R
As at March 31, 2023 635.29 639.29
Depreciation
As at April 1, 2022 14,21 14.21
Depreciation charge for the year 42.61 42.61
Disposals - A
As at March 31, 2023 56.82 56,82
Net Block as at March 31, 2023 582.47 582.47
Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the movements during the year:

March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Opening 586.50 598.24
Additions
Accretion of interest 42.98 43,85
Payments {55.60) (55.60)
Closing Balance 573.88 586.50
Current 15.75 12,61
Non-current 558.12 573.88
The effective interest rate for lease liabilities is 7.33%, with maturity in the year 2036.
The following are the amounts recognised in profit or loss:
As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets 42.61 42.61
Interest expense on lease liabilities 4298 43.85
Variable lease payments (included in other expenses) - -
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 85.59 86.46

The Maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note 38.
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Note 358
Capital commitments and contingent liabilities
a. Capital commitments

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on other account and not provided for (net of 57.12 61.53
advances)

b. Contingent Liabilities

There are no contingent |iabilitics against the Company as at and for each of the years ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023,

Note 36
Particulars of unhedged foreign currency exposure as at the balance sheet date
March 31, 2024
Amount in foreign currency Amount in INR
Payables
usp 0.31 25.39
March 31, 2023
Amount in foreign currency Amount in INR
Payables
usD 0.23 19.18

[THIS SPACE HAS INTENTIONALLY BEEN LEFT BLANK)
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Note 37
Related Party Disclosures
Disclosures of transactions with related parties are as under:

A. Names of related parties and the nature of their relationship with whom transactions have taken place during the year:

Nature of relationship Name of the company

Investors Atul Chordia -HUF
Premsagar Infra Reality Private Limited
BRE Asia ICC Holdings Limited (earlier known as Xander Investment Holding

XVI Limited)
Key managerial personnel Atul Chordia (Director)
Resham Chordia (Director)
Enterprises owned or significantly influenced by key management A27 Online Services Private Limited
personnel or their relatives or major shareholders of the Company Brightside Techpark Private Limited (till October 31, 2022)

Enterprise Data Parks Private Limited
EON-Hinjewadi Infrastructure Private Limited
EON Kharadi Infrastructure Private Limited
Gramercy Trade Industries Private Limited
Le-Style Enterprise Private Limited

Lifestyle Interior LLP

Panchshil Foundation

Panchshil Realty and Developers Private Limited
Panchshil Corporate Park Private Limited
Panchshil Infrastructure Holdings Private Limited
Panchshil Trade and Techpark Private Limited

B. Transactions with Related Parties

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Reimbursement of expenses

EON-Hinjewadi Infrastructure Private Limited 0.00* -

Panchshil Corporate Park Private Limited 1.95 0.07

Lifestyle Interior LLP 0.06 -
Professional fees

A27 Online Services Private Limited 51.66 -
General & administration cost

A2Z Online Services Private Limited 0.64 -
Asset ivianagement Charges

A2Z Online Services Private Limited 31.58 28.55
Royalty Fees Expense

Premsagar Infra Realty Private Limited 0.65 =
Sales Of Construction Material

Lifestyle Interior LLP 0.19 1.66
CAM Income-Office Block Recovery

A2Z Online Services Private Limited 8.40 12.29
Reimbursement of expenses received or receivable

Panchshil Corporate Park Private Limited 0.72 0.80

Panchshil Infrastructure Holdings Private Limited 12.50 7.78

EON-Hinjewadi infrastructure Private Limited 0.94 0.84

EON Kharadi infrastructure Private Limited - 0.23
Rental income

Le-Style Enterprise Private Limited 0.83 0.28
Unsecured loan given to

A27 Online Services Private Limited = 10.00

Gramercy Trade Industries Private Limited E 80.00

Panchshil Trade and Techpark Private Limited 830.00 €

Brightside Techpark Private Limited - 350,00

Enterprise Data Parks Private Limited 120.00
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Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Unsecured loan repaid from

Panchshil Trade and Techpark Private Limited 120.00 -

Enterprise Data Parks Private Limited 120.00 -

A27 Online Services Private Limited - 10.00

Gramercy Trade Industries Private Limited - 80.00

Brightside Techpark Private Limited 350.00
Unsecured loan taken from

AZ2Z Online Services Private Limited 970.00
Unsecured loan repaid to

A2Z Online Services Private Limited - 970.00
Services received

A2Z Online Services Private Limited - 4.16

Lifestyle Interior LLP - 0.75
Purchase of material

Lifestyle Interior LLP 521 0.29
Rent ,Rate & Taxes

Lifestyle Interior LLP - 0.00*
Repair & Maintenance

Lifestyle Interior LLP 1.57 9.37
Income others

Panchshil Realty and Developers Private Limited - 21.75
Brokerage Expenses

A27 Online Services Private Limited 53.64 50.76
Interest expenses

A2Z Online Services Private Limited = 0.60

Brightside Techpark Private Limited - 0.60
Interest income

A27 Online Services Private Limited - 0.00%

Gramercy Trade Industries Private Limited - 4.83

Panchshil Trade and Techpark Private Limited 50.37 -

Enterprise Data Parks Private Limited 0.04 -
Buy Back of shares including security premium

Atul Chordia - 16.66

Atul Chordia -HUF - 15.06

Premsagar Infra Realty Private Limited - 308.54

BRE Asia ICC Holdings Limited - 340.26
Dividend

Atul Chordia = 23.67

Atul Chordia -HUF - 21.40

Premsagar Infra Realty Private Limited - 438.44

BRE Asia ICC Holdings Limited - 483.50
CSR Expenses (Donation)

Panchshil Foundation 13.50 8.80
Signage Income

Panchshil Infrastructure Holdings Private Limited 1.92 1.87
Room, Food & Beverage Revenue

A2Z Online Services Private Limited 5.06 5.89

Panchshil Infrastructure Holdings Private Limited 033 0.08

EOQN-Hinjewadi infrastructure Private Limited 0.00% -

Atul Chordia - 0.43

Resham Chordia - 0.13

Panchshil Corporate Park Private Limited 0.00* 0.05
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Balances outstanding as at year end:
Related Party Disclosures-Balance outstanding

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Receivables
A2Z Online Services Private Limited 15.24 8.19
Panchshil Infrastructure Holdings Private Limited 2.50 1.27
Panchshil Corporate Park Private Limited 0.16 1.24
Le-Style Enterprise Private Limited 0.24 0.23
EON-Hinjewadi Infrastructure Private Limited 145 1.95
Panchshil Realty and Developers Private Limited - 21.75
Lifestyle Interior LLP 0.46 0.42
EON Kharadi Infrastructure Private Limited 0.23 0.23
Payables
Atul Chordia 0.60 0.60
A27 Online Services Private Limited 1.54 3.80
Panchshil Carporate Park Private Limited - 0.07
Panchshil Infrastructure Holdings Private Limited - 0.38
Premsagar Infra Realty Private Limited 0.70 -
Lifestyle Interior LLP 0.59 0.43
Inter company deposit receivable '
Panchshil Trade and Techpark Private Limited 710.00 -
Interest receivable
Panchshil Trade and Techpark Private Limited 45.24 -
Retention Money Payable
Lifestyle Interior LLP 0.03 -
Security deposit given
A2Z Online Services Private Limited 2,50 2.50
Unbilled revenue
A2Z Online Services Private Limited 0.84 -
* Amounts are below INR 0.01 millions
Transactions with key management personnel
Compensation of key management personnel of the Company
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Directors remuneration - Atul Chordia* 12.00 12.00

The amounts disclosed in the table are the amounts recognised as an expense during the reporting period related to key management personnel.

* The remuneration to the key managerial personnel does not include the provisions made for gratuity and leave encashment, as they are determined
on an actuarial basis for the Company as a whole.
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Note 38

Fair values

Set out below is a comparison, by class, of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Company's financial instruments as of March 31, 2024

Particulars

Amortised Cost

Fair value through profit and

Total carrying value

Total fair value

Financial assets

Current investments

Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Other bank balances

Loans

Other financial assets

Total-Financial assets
Financial liabilities
Borrowings

Other financial lizhilities
Lease Liability

Trade payables

Total-Financial liabilities

loss

- 1,576.20 1,576.20 1,576.20

173.13 = 173.13 173,13
32425 - 32425 32425
384.87 - 384.97 384.57
71000 - 710.00 710.00
177.22 - 177.22 177.22
1,769.57 1,576.20 3,345.77 334577
4,126,08 - 4,126.08 4,126.08
897.11 - 897.11 897,11
573.88 - 573.88 573.88
276.36 - 276,36 276,36
5,873.43 - 5,873.43 5,873.43

Set out below is a comparison, by class, of the carrying am

ounts and fair value of the Company’s financial instruments as of March 31, 2023

Particulars Amortised Cast Fair value through profit and Total carrying value Total fair value
loss

Financial assets

Current investments - 484.72 484,72 484,72
Trade and other recelvables 239,57 - 239,57 233,57
Cash and cash eguivalents 22539 - 225.39 22539
Other bank balances 367.80 = 367.80 367.80
Other financial assets 202.29 - 202.29 202,29
Total-Financial assets 1,035.05 484.72 1,519.77 1,519.77
Financial liabilities

Barrowings 4,251.67 - 4,251.67 4,251.67
Other financial llabilities 814.90 - 814.50 814,90
Lease Liability 586.49 - 586.49 586,49
Trade payables 23564 - 235.64 235.64
Total-Financial liabilities 5,888.70 - 5,8BB.70 5,888.70

The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents (including bank balances), trade receivables, loans, trade payables and other current financial assets and lisbillties approximate their
carrying amounts largely due to the shart-term maturities of these instruments. The fair values of the financial assets and llabilities are included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale, The fallowing methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values :

Current Investments

The Company's current investments consist of investment in units of mutual funds, The falr value of investments in mutual funds is derived from the NAV of the respective units at the measurement

date,

Falr value hierarchy

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company’s financial Instruments measured at fair value after initial recognition:

Quoted prices in active

Significant observable

Significant unobservable

Date of valuation Fair Values
markets (Level 1) inputs (Level 2} inputs (Level 3)

Assets measured at fair value
investments in units of mutual funds March 31, 2024 1,576.20 1,576.20 -
Investments in units of mutual funds March 31, 2023 484,72 484.72 - -
Assets for which fair value are disclosed
Investment property March 31, 2024 34,044.45 - - 34,044.49
Investment praperty March 31, 2023 32,663.14 - 32,663.14

There were no transfers between level 1, level 2 and level 3 during the years ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023,
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Mote 39

Financial risk management objedives and polices

The Company's principal financial lizbilities comprise trade payables, borrowings and security deposits. The main purpose of these flinancial liabilities is to finance the Company's aparations and to support s operations. The
Company's principal financial assets includes investments, trade recefvables and cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations.

The Campany is expased to market risk, credit riskand lguidity risk. The Board of Directars reviews and agrees palicies faor managing sach of these risks, which are summarised below:

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will luctuate because of changes in market prices. Market prices comprise three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency rlsk and other
price risk such as equity price risk and commodity price risk. Financizl imstruments affected by market risk Include borrowings and Investments,

The sensitivity analyses in the following sections relate ta the position as at March 31, 2024 and March 21, 2023

The sensitivity analysis have been prepared an the basis that the amount of net debit and the ratio of fixed-to floating interest rates of the debt are all constant as at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023

Price risk

There is no investmeant in equity shares, henca there is no equity price risk, Further, the Company does not carry any significant commodity price risk.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluetuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company's expasure ta the risk of changss in market interest rates
relates primarily to the Lompany’s long-term debt obligstions with lioating interest rates, The Company has not hedged its exposure to fluctuations in the interest rates on account of the insignificant impact of any changes in
the interest rate to [ts operations.

Interest rate sensitivity

The following table d ates the ithvity to a ly passible change in interest rates an that portion of loans and borrowlngs affected the Company profit before tax s affected thraugh the impact on floating rate
borrowings, as follows:

Risk management- Interest rate sensitivity table

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Increase [ decrease in | Effect on profit before | Increase f decrease in | Effect on profit before
basis points tax basis points tax
1NR +50 {21.48) +50 (18.78)
-50 2148 - 50 19.78

Credit risk

Cradit risk is the risk that 3 counterparty will not meet its ebligations under a financial Instrument or customer contract, eading 1o a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit rlsk from its operating activities (primarily
trade recelvables) and from Its financing activities, including deposits with banks, if any, investment in mutual fund and ather financial instruments.

Trade receivables

Customer credit risk [s managed by the Company’s estalilished policy, pracedures and control relating to ¢ credit risk For the fived lease income, the billing is done In advance Le. at the heginning of the
month and for variable lease rent and other maintenance charges, the credit peried provided is of 7 to 10 days, Thus there are no major trade receivable balances outstanding 2t the year and period end.

In case of hospitality business, credit risk s managed by each business unit subject to the Company's established palicy, procedures and cantral relating to credit risk Credit quality of a customer is
assessed based on an extensive credit rating scorecard and individual cradit limits are defined in accardance with this .0 ling ¢ reg les are regularly monitored.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date s the carrying value of each class of financial assets disclosed in nate 39.

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether a trade recelvable or 2 group of trade receivables is Impaired. The Company recognlses |ifetime expected credit losses for all trade receivables that do not o i a
financing transaction and which are due for more than six months, The expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to 12 month expected credit lasses or at an amaunt equal to the lifetime expected credit losses
if the credit risk on the trade receivables has increased significantly since initial recagnition. The Campany uses a practical expedient by computing the expected credit lass all e for trade recejvables based on 2 pravision
matrix.
Particulars Not due Within 120 days* Maore than 120 days* Total
March 31, 2024
Estimated total gross carrying amount 0.43 108.47 107.17 216,07
ECL - Simplified approach - {23.22) (19.72 {4294}
Net carrying amount 0.43 85,25 87.45 173.13
Particulars Not due Within 120 days* More than 120 days® Total
March 31, 2023
Estimated total gross carrying amount 0.64 197.27 85.68 283.59
ECL - Simplified approach - (0.21) (43.80) [44.01)
Net carrying amount 0.64 157.06 41.@ 239,58

* Provision is made for recelvables where recovery is considered doubtful Irrespective of due date. Where an amount s sutstanding for more than 365 days the Company usually provides for the same unless there is clear
visibility ef .

Forelgn currency risk

Forelgn currency risk s the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes In fareign exchange rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in forelgn exchange rates
relates primarily to the C Vs ies (when ar is o i FIn a foreign curency). The Company has not hedged Its exposure to fluctuations in the foreign exchange rates on considering
that the Campany will settle the entirs e'xpusure within o period of 127 manlhs and the insignificant impact of any fluctuations in the rate to its operations.

Foreign currency sensitivity

The fallowing tables d the ytoa by ible change in USD exchange rates, with all other variables held constant, The impact on the Company’s prafit befare tax (s due to changes in the fair value
of monetary assets and liabilties.
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Increase [/ decrease in | Effect on profit before | Increase [ decrease in | Effect on profit before
rate tax rate tax
USD paysbles +50 [(1.27) +50 10.96)
- 50 1.27 -50 0.96
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Liguidity risk

Liqurd iy risk is defined s the risk that the Company will nat be able to settle or mest jts obligations an time or at a reasonable price. The Campany’s finance department is responsible for hiquidity, funding as well as
settiement management, Inaddition, processes and palices related to such risk are overseen by Senior manage ment, Management monitors the Company's net liguidity position on a monthly and quarterly basis through its

Senigr mar

ing and board me

ings. They use rolling forecasts on the basis of expected cash ilows

The Senlor management ensures that the future cash flow nesds are met thiough cash flow from the aperating activities and short term borrowings from banls.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company's financial labilities based an contractual undiscounted payments:

Risk management- Liquidity risk 25 at March 31, 2024

On dl d Less than 3 months 3-17 months 1-5 years Mare than 5 years Total
March 31, 2024
Borrowings . 21.50 107.50 BEE. 58 3,134.88 4,132.48
Securlty deposit A05.00 2512 133.34 49649 - 958,95
Trade Payables E 276.36 - & - 276.36
Lease Liability - 13.90 4393 259.04 613.01 979.87
Dither fimancial liabilities - 3641 3gal
Payable to employees - 4.28 B.04 - - 12,32
Tatal 305.00 341.17 329.20 1,624.11 3,747.89 6,347.37

Risk management- Liquidity risk as at March 31, 2023

On demand Less than 3 manths 3-12 months 1-5 years Mare than 5 years Total
As at March 31,2023
Bommowings - 10.06 42.69 71546 3,424.52 4,262.73
Security deposit 323.25 25.81 44,76 aaa.1a . 837,92
Trade Payahles - 105.41 130.23 ) - 235.64
Lease Liahility - 13.90 a1.70 316.85 613,01 985 46
Other financial [iabilities - 15.64 32.80 - ABA4
Payable to employees . 436 12.04 - - 16.40
Total 323.25 175.19 304.22 1,476.41 4,107.53 6,386.59

Capital management

Far the purpose of the C y's capital

management is to ensure that it maintains a strong credit rating and healthy capital ratios in arder to support its business and maximise shareholder valus

capitalincludes issued equity capital and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity halders of the Company. The primary objective of the Company’s capital

The Campany manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes In economic conditions and the requirements of the financial cavenants. To maintain or adjust the capltal steucture, the Company
may adjust the dividend to shareholders, return capital 1o sharehalders or issue new shares, The Company monlitars the capital using gearing ratia, The Company includes within net debt, lease |fabilities, interest

bearing loans and borrowlings, less cash and cash equivalents,

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Borrowings (Note 17) 412508 4,251.67
Less: cash and short-term and long term deposits [Note 144 and 148) 715,83 677.63
Net debt 3,410.25 3574.04
Equity share capital [Note 15) 104.44 10444
Other equity (Note 16) 324010 1,573.28
Total capital 3,344.54 1,677.72
Capital and net debt 6,754.79 5,251.75
Gearing ratio 50% BH%

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company's capital
structure req Breaches in i the financial

borrowing in the years presented.

gst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants attached ta the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital

[THIS SPACE HAS INTENTIOMALLY BEEN LEFT BLANI]

would permit the bank to immediately call |oans and barrowlings. There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and




Ventive Hospitality Private Limited

(Formerly known as ICC Realty (India) Private Limited)

CIN: U45201PN2002PTC143638
Notes to the Financial Statements

{All amounts are in Indian Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

Note 40
Ratios

Ratios as at March 31, 2024

Particulars Numerator Denominator March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023 | % Increase/decrease Remarks

in ratio

{a) Current ratio Current Assets Current Liabilities 3.0 1.67 80%|Ratio has increased in FY 23-24 on account of increase in current assets due to
investment of surplus funds and advancement of loans.

(b) Debt-equity ratio Total Debt Shareholder's Equity 1.23 153 -51%Ratio has decreased in FY 23-24 on account of increase In share holders equity
on account of profit and decrease in debt on account of repayment during the
year.

[c) Debt service coverage ratio Earnings for debt service = [Debt service = Interest & Lease Payments 5.82 0.57 924%|Ratio has increased in FY 23-24 on account of increase in profits, Ratio in FY22-

Net profit after taxes + +Principal Repayments 23 was lower on account of repayment of debentures.
Mon-cash operating
expenses

{d} Return on equity ratio Net Profits after taxes Average Shareholder's Equity 0.66 0.69 -3%|The variance is below 25% , thus reason not required,

{2} Inventory turnover ratio Cost of materials Average Inventory 7.56 972 -22%|The variance is below 25% , thus reason not required.

consumed

{f] Trade receivables turnaver ratio  |Net credit sales = Gross Average Trade Receivable 23.16 19.65 1B%|The variance is below 25% , thus reason not required.

credit sales - sales return

{g) Trade payables turnover ratio Net credit purchases = Average Trade Payables 6.11 5.69 7%|The variance is below 25% , thus reason not required.

Grass credit purchases -
purchase return

{h} Met capital turnover ratio Net sales = Total sales - Working capital = Current assets — 2.08 6.66 -b9%|Ratio has decreased in FY 23-24 on account of increzse in current assets due to

sales return Current lizhilities investment of profit in investment & loans

(i) Net profit ratio Net Profit Net sales = Tatal sales - sales return 0.35 030 14%|The variance is below 25% , thus reason not required.

(i) Return an capital employed Earnings before interest  |Capital Employed = Tangible Net Worth + 031 0.31 2%|The variance is below 25% , thus reason not required,

and taxes Total Debt + Deferred Tax Liabllity
(k) Return an investment Interest (Finance Income) |Investment = Mutual Fund + Fixed 0.08 0.04 E 71%|Ratio has increased in FY 23-24 on account of increase in return on investment

Deposits

in mutual funds & loans.
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MNote 41

Social Security Code

The Code on Soclal Security 2020 {'the Code’} relating to employee benefits, during the employ and post-employ , has received Pr 18, 2020, The Code has besn published n
the Gazetts of India. Further, the Ministry of Labour and Employmant has released draft rules for the Cods on November 13, 2020, However, the effective date fram which the changes are applicable s yet to be
notifizd and rules for guantifying the financial impact are alse not yet issusd,

aszent on

The Company will assess the impact of the Code and will give appropriate impact in the financial statements in the period in which, the Code becames effective and the ralated rules to determine the financial Impact
are published.

Note 42

Other note

The Campany has used accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has @ feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facllity and the same has operated throughout the year for all relavant
transactions recorded in the software except that audit trail feature is not enabled for certain changes made, if any, using privileged/ administrative access rights to the application (in case of SAP 54 HANA and SAP
6.0) and/or the underlying database (in case of S4P 54 HANA, SAP 6.0 and Opera),

The Company has not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with, in respect of accounting softwarels) where the audit trail has been enabled.

Further, the Company has used three software in the hotel business (Peeplesoft, Birchstreet and Infrasys) which are operated by third-parnty software service praviders. |n the absence of any observations on audit
trail feature in the respective Service Organisation Controls {SOC) reports, the Company is unable to determing whether aud|t trail feature of thass software was enabled and operated throughout the year for all
relevant transactlons recorded in these software ar whether there wers any instances of the audit trall feature baing tampered with. Also, the Company has used one software in ts mall operations (Yardi} which is
aperated by a third-party software service provider, for maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended March 31, 2024 , which has a feature of recording audit trail [edit log) facility and the same has
aperated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software, except that in the absence of evidence in SOC-I Type 2 report, The Company is unable to determine whether audit traf| feature of
the sald software was enabled at the databaze level or whether there were any instances of the audit trail feature being tampered with.

Nate 43
i) The Company does not have any Benami proparty, where any pr
and rules made thereunder.
{i) The Company has barrowings from banks and details of charge are mantioned In Nate 17,
iii} The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority.
iv) The Company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual curreney during the current or previous year,
v} There is no income surrendered or disclosed as income during the current or previous year In the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 15961, that has not been

recorded in the books of account,
wl} The Company has not recaived any fund from any persan{s} or entity(les], including foralgn entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise} that the company shall: a.
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or b. provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the ultimats bensficiaries.
The Company has not ad or loaned ar |
lend ar invest in ather persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or an behalf of the
beneficiaries during the year ended March 31, 2023,

has been initiated or ling against the Group for holding any Benami praperty undar the Banam| Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988

| funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities {Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermadiary shall: a. directly or indirectly
y (Ulti ias} or b. provide any security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate

for further ad ing to tha Ultimate |

Following are the details of the funds advanced by the C: y during the year ended March 31, 2024, to Inter)

Date an which funds are further advanced Amauntaf funt furthesadvanced ox
Name of the intermediary ta which the funds are Date of Funds Amount of funds Ioaned or invested by such
invested by Intermediaries to other e E o [Uitimate Beneficiary
advanced advanced advanced i ies to other ies
intermediaries or Ultimate Beneficiaries e
or Ultimate Beneficiaries
Fanchshil Trade and Techpark Private Limited July 032, 2023 650.00 June 30, 2023 276.02 KBJ Hotel and Restaurants
" |Private Limited
Aspect Global Ventures
Private Limited (formerly
238 known as Next Avanue
Venturas Private Limited)
. KBl Hotel and Resta i
Panchshil Trade and Techpark Private Limited August 23, 2023 50.00 August 24, 2023 50.00] O A SRR
Private Limited
Ti P
Enterprise Data Park Private Limited October 25, 2023 120,00 October 25, 2023 120,00 zala:\rzdi echpark Private
mite
Panchshil Trade and Techpark Private Limited Deember 30, 120.00 Decembear 30, 2025 120.00 Az Onlinecaryices hivate
2023 Limited
Panchshil Trade and Techpark Private Limited March 16, 2024 10.00 March 16, 2024 g2 Hotel and Restaurante
|Private Limited
The Company has plied with the rel provisions of the Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1980 (42 of 1999} and the Companies Act, 2013 for the above fons and the tr are not violative of

the Prevention of Money-Laundering Act, 2002 (15 of 2003).

C lete details of the intermediary and ulti beneficiary:
Name of the entity Registered Address Government Identification Number (PAN) |Rel hip with the C
Panchshil Trade and Techpark Frivate Limited 5 No., 191A/24/1/2, Tech Park One, Tower  [AAKCPI1314 Enterprises owned or significantly infl d by key t
'E’, Yerwacda, Pune, Pune, Maharashtra, India-| persannel or their relatives or major shareholders of the Company
4110086
Aspect Global Ventures Private Limited (formerly Unit No.501, Dalamal House, 206 Jampalal  |AAGCKB343R Mot related
known as Next Avenue Ventures Private Limited] Baja| Marg, Nariman Point, Nanman Foint,
Mumbai, Mumbai, Mat ra, India,
400021
KBJ Hotel and Restaurants Private Limited 20th Floor, Express Towers, Nariman Paint, [AADCKEOE0G Subsidiary of Enterprises owned or significantly influenced by key
Mumbai, Mumbai, Maharashtrs, Indla, management personnel or their relatives or major sharsholdars of
a0o021 the Company
Balewadi Techpark Private Limited S No. 191A/24/1/2, Tech Park One, Tower  |AACP75028 Enterprises owned or significantly infl 1 by key 53
'E!, Yerwada, Pune, Pune, Maharashtra, India- personnel or their relatives or major shareholders of the Company
411006
AZZ Online Services Private Limited Tech Park One Tower 'E', Next To Don Bosco [AACP75028 Enterprises owned or significantly influenced by key management
School, OFf Alrport Road, Yerwada, Pune, personnel or their or mzjor sharsholders of the C:
|Maharashtra, India, 411006

il The Company has not revalued its property, plant and

viil) The Company has no transactions with the companies struck off under Companies Act, 2013 or Companies Act, 1356,

linciudi .

{ B right wssels) ori

iLle assets or bolh during the current ai jevious year,




Ventive Hospitality Private Limited

(Formerly known as ICC Realty (India) Private Limited)

CiN: U45201PN2002PTC1A3638

Notes to the Financial Statements

[All amounts are in Indian Rupees millions, unless stherwise stated)

Mote 44
Subsequent events
The C has d an ag: dated April 18, 2024, with the shareholders of Restacraft Hospitality Private Limited for the acquisition of 100% of its equity.

As per aur report of even date

ForSRBC&COLLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accauntants Ventive Hospitality Private Limited
CA! Firm Reglstration N\EJJFJE.‘.EIEBOUUOS {Formerly known as ICC Reality (India) Private Limited)
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